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part of the 37 acre Weber Nature Park development master plan. Weber Nature Park development started in 2002 with land
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this restroom and shelter building was funded by an additional state grant and private donation.
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April 28, 2009

To the Honorable Mayor, members of the Common Council and the Citizens of the City of Marshfield:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Marshfield for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, is hereby submitted.
This repoft consists of management's representations conceming the finances of the City of Marshfield. Consequently, management
assumes full responsibitity for the completeness and reliability of all of the informatioh presented in this report. To provide a reasonable
basis for making these representations, management of the City of Marshfield has established a comprehensive internal control
framework. It is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft ¢r misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information
for the preparation of financial statements in conformance with generally accepied accotnting principles (GAAP). This comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed fo provide reasonable, rather than absoliite, assurarice that the financial statements will
be free from material misstatement because the cost of internal controls should not exceed their benefits. As management, we assert that,
1o the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respecis.

Hawkins, Ash, Bapiie & Company, LLP, a firm of ficensed cerfified public accountants has audited the City of Marshfield’s financial
statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the city for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2008 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit invoived examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor conciuded, based upon the
audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Marshiield’s financial statements for the fiscal
- year ended December 31, 2008, are fairly presented in conformity wnh GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report. ‘

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in
the form of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This ietter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be
read in conjunction with it. The City of Marshfield's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

_ Profile of the Government

The City of Marshfield was incorporated in 1883, under the provisions of Chapter 280, Laws of Wisconsin, 1883. Marshfield is one of four
- major ciffes in the Central Wisconsin:area; being located in the-exact center of the state. Hance, Marshfield is known as the 'City-in'the -
Center”. The city currently has a land area of 13.3 square miles. Itis a city rich in Wisconsin lore, with lumbering, rich farmiands and

' “railroading dominating its earlier history.

An elected Mayor and Common Council under a mayor-councit form of government govern the City. Common Councit members serve
two-year staggered terms, with five members elected every year. The Mayor is elected to seive 4 two-year term. All ten of the Common
Council members are elected by district and the Mayor elected af large. The Comimon Council mieets in regular session twice monthly and
performs the legislative and policy making functions of city government. By statute, the Mayor presides at Council meetings and serves as
the Chief Elected Officer. Since 1989, administrative functions of city government have been delegated to a City Administrator who is hired
by and reports to the Mayor and Gommon Council,

Email:keiths@ci.marshfield.wi.us -




Under an organizaticnal plan approved in 1989, the City Administrator is responsible for certain deparimenis including Finance,
Information Technology, Public Works, Parks and Recreation, and Planning and Economic Development. The City Administrator annually
prepares and presents an executive budget recommendation to the Mayor and Common Council. In 1990, a 5-year Capital Improvement
Program (CIP) poiicy statement was adopted by the Common Council and a 5-year Capital Improvement Program has been subsequently
adopted every year. '

With an estimated 2008 population of 19,454, the city has seen a slight decline in population and significant growth in ifs tax base over the
past decade. In the 1990 publication, The Rating Guide To Life In America's Small Cities, Marshfieid was ranked 14th in America, 3rd in
the Midwest and 1st in Wisconsin for its quality of life. In addition, Marshfield was recentty named as the 8" best place to live in America
by Demographics Daily and in 2008 was ranked 20! best “dreamtown” in the nation by Bizjournals.com.

The city employs 189 full-time equivalent employees. The police department has 38 officers and 7 staff employees. The Marshfield Fire
and Rescue Department that employs 33 firefighters and one staft employee provide fire protection. The fire insurance rating is class 4.

The city provides a full range of services including police and fire protection; sanitation services; construction and maintenance of
highways, streets and cther infrastructure; planning and economic development; and library, recreational activities and cultural events.
Also included are activities of the Beard of Water and Light Commissioners, Fire and Police Commission, Library Board, and smaller
boards and commisstons over which the Common Council exercises, or has the ability to exercise direct administrative authority and/or
responsibility.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the Cily of Marshfield’s financial planning and control. All departments of the City of
Marshfield are required to submit budget requests for the following fiscal year to the Finance Department by the first Friday of August. The
Finance Department performs a technical review of alt requests, then compiles and prepares the initial budget as a starting point for the
City Administrator by the last week of August. The first full week of September, the City Administrator and Finance Director hold budget
hearings with Departments to review budget requests with Department heads. The City Administrator then prepares and presents a
recommended budget to the Common Council at the first regular Common Council meeting in October.

A minimum of three special budget work sessions of the Gommon Council are held to review the Administratot’s recommended budget
prior to publication of the Common Council proposed budget. The Gouncil is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and
adopts a final budget by the last Common Council meeting in November. The budget is prepared by fund, function {e.g., public safety},
and department (e.g., police). Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department with the exception of capital
outlay. Transfers of appropriations between departments or capital outlay, however, require the special approval of the Common Council.
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental fund for which an appropriated annual budget
has been adopted.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is pethaps best understood when it is considered from the broader perspective of the
specific environment within which the City of Marshfield cperates.

Economic Condition and Outlook: The Marshfield economy is diversified with 63 manufacturing firms; 13 indusirial distribution firms;
four transport firms; 26 utility, communication and printing firms; and several medical service firms.

The Marshfield Clinic, founded in 1916, is Wisconsin's most comprehensive health care system with approximately 780 physician
specialists, serving patients in Marshfield and more than 45 regional centers throughout central, western, eastern and northern Wiscensin,
Marshfield Clinic system employs nearly 6,600. There were over 3.46 million patient encounters in 2007.

Saint Joseph’s Hospital, a 500-plus bed tertiary care teaching institufion which adjoins the Clinic, is one of the largest rural referral medical
centers in Wisconsin, and the only level |l verified trauma center in the north central part of the state. It provides health care, including all
major medical and surgical specialties and subspecialties, to a service area including Wisconsin and Upper Michigan. Among Saint
Joseph's specialties are oncology and cardiac services. In 2008, it was awarded the recognition of “Children’s Hospital”.




- Marshfield Clinic Research Foundation has grown into the largest private medical research foundation in the state and among the largest
in the nation. Numerous clinical trials and other research projects are active in the system at any fime. These studies provide knowledge
to the medicai community across the United States and around the world,

Marshtield Clinic Laboratories is one of the largest full-service private practice medical laboratory systems in the nation with approximately
20 million test results reported annually. 1t serves as a reference laboratory for more than 500 health care facilities. Marshfield Clinic
Laboratories has established separate service lines for forensic toxicology, food safety and veterinary medicine with clients across the
nation.

In addition to Marshfield being a major medical service center, the focus of the manufactured housing industry in the state, and the home
for manufactured wood products, the city is also a strong metalworking and machinery center, especially stainless steel products. The city
has 2 top transportation carriers with employment of over 2,700. Marshfield is also known for its dairy food processing, most notably for its
cheese. One unique business is Figi's Inc.,.a mail order cheese, sausage, gift firm which employs over 3,000 during the October-
December peak gift period.

Marshfield is also home to the new University of Wisconsin (UW) Agricultural Research Station’s Institute for Environmentally Integrated
Dairy Management. This is a significant partnership between USDA Agricultural Research Service/US Dairy Forage Research Center,
USDA Natural Resources Conservations Service, UW/Madison College of Agricultural and Life Sciences and National Farm Medicine
Center/Marshfield Clinic Research Foundation.

‘Overall, the Marshfield-Wood County area economy experienced a decline over the past twelve months. The Wood County unempioyment
rate increased from 4.9% for 2007 to 6.4% for 2008, lower than the nation at 7.1% and higher than the state at 5.8%. Total Wood County
employment expanded in 2008 with an estimated Total Nonfarm increase of 1.4%. Sectors experiencing employment growth were
Transportation & Utilities; Financial Activities, Education & Health Services; Leisure & Hospitality and Information & Business Services.
The sectors experiencing reductions in 2008 were Construction & Natural Resources; Manufacturing; Trade and Government. The total
number of unemployment claims in Marshfield increased from 314 weekly average claims in fourth quarter 2007 to 410 in 2008, an
increase of 30.6%. The total number of public assistance claims in Marshfield increased 25.8% from 66 monthly average claims in fourth
quarter 2007 io 83 in 2008.

Marshfield's businesses continued to grow in 2008 with the addition of 10 new commercial and industrial buildings valued at $2,986,000.
Additionally, 100 businesses remodeled and/or expanded existing facilities valued at $8,645,731. The city experienced a decrease in
residential housing starts from 15 in 2007 to 14 in 2008 valued at $3,643,196.

The city is positioned to experience increased development as improvements were finished to State Highway 13 on the north end of the
city in 2005, completion of the new Veteran's Parkway {Marshfield Boulevard) in 2003, completion of infrastructure construction in Mill
Creek Business Park in 2003, development of Yellowstone Indusirial Park started in 2009, reconstruction of Central Avenue in 2009
through the core of downtown and completion of the U.S. Highway 10 expansion io four-lanes from Stevens Paint to Marshfield by 2013.

Retirement Program: All eligible City of Marshfield employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer, defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). Additional details regarding this are presented in Note 8 —
Defined Benefit Pension Plans in the Notes to Financial Statements.

Debt Administration: During the year, the city issued $3,880,000 of taxable electric system refunding revenue bonds, $1,870,000 of
taxable note anficipation notes and $35,165,000 of electric system revenue bond anficipation notes fo fund construction of an electric
generation plant and refinance existing utifity debt. As of December 31, 2008, the city had 25 debt issues outstanding. These issues
included $21,106,261 of general obligation bonds, notes and $60,423,676 of morigage revenue bonds. The city has continually maintained
its “Aag3 rating from Moody's Investors Service on general obligation debf issues and a "MIG-1° rating on its mortgage revenue bond
IS5LIes:

Under Wisconsin statutes, general obligation debt is subject to a legal limitation based on 5% of total equalized value of real and personal
property. As of December 31, 2008, the city's net general obligation debt of $21,106,261 was well below the legal limit of $66,497,950.
Net bonded debt per capita equaled $1,085. The city adheres to an aggressive repayment policy.




Cash Management: Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposits, government agencies, corporate bonds, and
the State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool. The average yield on invesiments ranged from 1.29% to 4.07%. The city and
its proprietary funds eamned interest revenue of $1,851,937 on all investments for the year ended December 31, 2008. The city's
investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly, it is the city's
policy that deposits are either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. For brief periods of fime certain amounts were not
collateralized pending transfer to the State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool. All collateral on deposits was held either by
the city, our agent or a financial instifution's trust department in the city's name.

Remaining investments were held in long-term securities in accordance with State Statutes and the city’s investment policy adopted in
2001. During 2008 the city maintained fong-term investments of $2,001,111 long-term govemment agency securities of varying maturity
dates with interest rates between 3.50% and 4.00% with an emphasis on safety, liquidity and yield on the funds invested.

Risk Management: The City of Marshfield is a member of the League of Wisconsin Municipalities Insurance Plan. This ptan provides
workers' compensation, casualty, professional liability and errors and omissions coverage tailored specifically for Wisconsin municipalities.
The City is also a member of the WI Local Government Property Insurance Fund program for property coverage needs for Wisconsin
municipalities.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievemant for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Marshfield for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December
31,2007. This was the fourteenth consecutive year that the City of Marshfield Finance Department has received this prestigious award, In
order to be awarded a Certificate of Achisvement, a govermment must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive
annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We belisve that our current comprehensive annual financial report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility
for another certificate.

F would like to acknowtedge the Cily Administrator, city departments and all others who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this
report. Also, | would fike to thank our independent auditors, Hawkins, Ash, Baptie & Company for their assistance and professional
guidance, which contributed significantly to the report quality and adherence to accounting standards. Their experience and expertise was
extremely valuable to the Finance department.

Finally, | would fike to acknowledge and express my sincere appreciation to the entire staff of the Finance Department for their outstanding
work throughout the year. Without their support, preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respactiully submitted,

Yk R Sty

Keith R, Strey, CPA
Finance Direcior
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h Hawkins, Ash, Baptie

W« coMmPANY, LLP

Certified Public Accountants | Business Advisors

Real Solutions. Real Service.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Common Councif
City of Marshfield, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin ("City”), as of and for the year ended December 31,
S 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as fisted in the table of contents. These basic financial statements

: are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements based on
T our audif.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amarica and ttie standards
applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrofler Gengral of the United States. Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free
S of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on & test basis, evidence supporfing the amounts and disclosures in the financial -
: statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
= evaluating the overali financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
— In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
. governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
B Marshfield, Wisconsin as of December 31, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable; cash flows thereof
- for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America.
' In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated Apyil 21, 2009, on our consideration of the City of -
Marshfield, Wisconsin's infernal control over financial reporing and our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations
" contracts, and granis. That report is an integral part of an audit performed with Government Auditing Standards and should be read i in
Q conjunciion with this report in considering the resuits of our audit.
e The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 13 through 19 and 51 through 52 are not a
: required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in
i the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management '
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However we did not audit the
: information and express no opinion on it.
,,,,, e

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Marshfield, -
Wisconsin's basic financial statements. The introductory section, other supplementary information, combining and individual nonmajor
: fund financial statements, and statisticat section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not & required part of the basic -
. financial staterents. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial staiements and other supplementary information have been .-
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, int our opinion, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation fo the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The intreductory and statistical sections have not been subjected fo
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. '

- Marshfield, Wiscansin
April 21, 2008

o | -12-
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin, we offer readers of the City of Marshfield’s basic financiat statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Marshfield for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. We encourage
readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the City’s basic financial
statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

+ The assets of the City of Marshfield exceeded iis liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $135,442,225 (nef assets).

« The government's total net assets increased by $7,637,095, with both governmental and business-type activities increasing net
assets.

» As of the close of the current fiscal year, the C:ty of Marshfield’s governmental funds reported combined endmg fund balances of
$8,408,996 a decrease of $1,611,078 in comparison with the prior year. The decrease is primarily due to issuance of debt for
2008 capital projects in December 2007 and unexpended funds budgeted for 2008 operations.

- » Atthe end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund batance for the General Fund was $6,455,755, or 33 percent of fotal
general fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

« The Electric Utility received final regulatory appraval to begin construction of a new combustion turbine generator (designated
“M-17) located within the City of Marshfield at an estimated cost of $34.7 millicn with expected completion in early 2010. $35.165
million in Bond Anficipation Notes were issued during the year to finance the project.

Overview of the Financial Statemenis

This discussion and analysis is intended to setve as an introduction to City of Marshfield’s basic financial statements. The City's basic
financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial statements, and 3) notes to
the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the City through the use of
government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other
supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin.

Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management's Basic
Discussion and Analysis Financial
Statements
Government-wide Financial Fund ' Notes to the
Statemenis Financial Financial Statements
Statements

v

Summary Detail
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Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and
long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual parts of the City's
government. These statements provide more defail than the government-wide statements. There are three parts o the Fund Financial
Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of the data
contained in those staiements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the City's individual funds.
Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this pari of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City's finances, simitar in format
to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the
City's financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are the difference between the
- City's tofal assets and total fiabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the City's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: 1) governmental activities and 2) business-type activities. The
governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration, -
Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these activiies. The business-type activities are those that the Gty
charges customers fo provide. These include the electric, water, communications, sewer, ambulance and storm water services offered by
the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific acfivities or objectives. The Gity of Marshfield, Wisconsin,
like all other governmental entities in Wisconsin, uses fund accounting to ensure and refiect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-
related legal requirements, such as the State of Wisconsin Statutes or the City's budget ordinance. All of the funds of City of Marshfieid,
Wisconsin can be divided into three categories: governmentaf funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as govermnmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. Most of the City’s basic services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on
how assets can readily be converted info cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in
the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a short-
term spending focus. As a result, the govemnmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or
her determing if there are more or less financial resources availabie to finance the City's programs. The relationship between government
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation
that is a part of the fund financial statements.

information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the debt service fund, both of which are considered fo be major
funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. tndividual fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds (except those for which multi-year project budgets
are approved) as required by the State of Wisconsin Statutes. The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from
citizens of the City, management of the City, and decisions of the Gouncil about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also
authorizes the City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary comparison schedule
provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the Gity complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the City succeeded
in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted
by the council; 2) the final budget as amended by the council; 3} the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in
the General Fund; and 4) the variance between the final budget and the actual revenues and expenditures,
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Proprietary Funds — City of Marshfield, Wisconsin has two different kinds of proprietary funds, Enterprise and tntemal Service Funds.
Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The City of Marshfield uses enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and communications activity, sanitary sewer opetations,
ambulance services and storm water activity. These funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulated and
allocate costs internally among the City of Marshfield’s various functions. The City of Marshfield uses internal service funds to account for
its machinery and equipment. Because both of these services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-type functions,
they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide separate information for Marshfield Utilities and for the Wastewater Utility, both of which are considered
to be major funds of the City of Marshiield. Conversely, the internal service fund is presented in the proprietary fund financial statements,
as a single column,

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the govemment-wide financial statement because the rescurces of those funds are not avaitable to support the
City of Marshfield's own programs. The most significant fiduciary fund maintained by the City of Marshfield is the Property Tax Fund which
racords the tax roll and tax collections for other taxing jurisdictions within the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for governmental funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the governmeni-wide and fund financiat statlements.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required

supplementary information concerning the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. Reguired supplementary information can be found following the
notes to the financial statements.

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's Net Asseis

Figure 1
{In Thousands of dollars)
Governmenial Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current & other assets $ 23876 § 25162 $ 54237 § 20,015 $ 78113 § 45177
‘Capital assets ' 65,633 54,844 91,509 90,246 167,141 156,000

Total assets 89,508 90,006 145,746 110,261 235,254 200,267
Long-term lizbilities cutstanding 20,662 23,866 62,032 25,664 82,694 49,530
Other liabilities 13,757 13.611 3,361 9,320 17,118 22,931

Total liabilities 34,418 37,477 65,393 34,884 99,812 72,461
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, . _

net of related debt 49,358 40,986 66,060 62,318 115,419 103,304
Restricted - 4,181 8,674 4,848 5,814 9,029 14,489
Unrestricted 1,550 2,869 9.444 7.145 10,994 10,013

Total net assets $ 55090 $ 52820 § 8033 § 75277 $ 13442 § 127806

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as ong useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. The assets of the City of
Marshfield exceeded liabilities by $135,442,225 as of December 31, 2008. The City's net assets increased by $7,637,095 for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2008. The largest portion (85%) reflects the City's investment in capital assets {e.9. land, land improvements,
buildings, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The City of Marshfield uses these
capital assets o provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of
Marshfietd’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must
be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An additional $9,029,313 of the City of
Marshfield’s net assets (7%) represents resources that are subject fo external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining
balance of $10,993,545 is unrestricted.
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Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for satvices
Grants & confributions
General revenues:
Taxes
State shared revenue
Interest and investment income
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culture, recreation & education
Conservation & development
Interest on long-term debt
Electric
Water
Wastewater
Other business-type activities

Total expenses

Excess {deficiency) befors transfers
Transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

City of Marshfield, Wisconsin Changes in Net Assets

Figure 2

{In Thousands of doffars)

Total

Governmental Activities Business-Type Aciivities

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
3 1,745  § 1,852 $ 35878 % 37,113 $ 437624 $ 38965
3,030 5,375 819 729 3,849 6,104
12,588 12 404 - - 12,588 12,404
5,759 5796 - - 5,759 5,796
520 654 1,526 1,162 2,045 1,816
195 171 24) 171 171
23837 § 26252 38,198 39.004 62,036 65,256
3,229 3,004 - 3,229 3,004
7,366 7,140 - 7,366 7,140
6,690 7,140 - 6,690 7,140
462 150 462 150
3,136 3,400 3,136 3,400
834 742 834 742
934 946 - - 934 946
- - 24,667 28,000 24,667 28,000
2,484 2,527 2,484 2,527
3,691 3,618 3,691 3,618
- - 905 883 905 883
22.652 22.522 31.747 35,028 54,399 57.550
1,185 3,730 6,452 3,976 7,637 7,706
1,376 1,329 (1.376) {1,320} - -
'2,561 5,059 5,076 2647 7,637 7,706
52 529 47,470 75,277 72,630 127.805 120,100
§ 55080 § 52529 $ 80353 § 75277 $ 135442 § 127,805

Figure 2 provides summarized operating results and their impact on net assts. Both governmental and business-type activities increased

the City's financial position.

.Governmental activities: The City relies primarily on taxes (approximately 50%) and state shared revenue (approximately 25%) to
provide basic services. Revenues were generally at similar levels. Public safety (approximately 33%) and public works (approximately

30%) comprise the majority of expenses. Expenses were generally consistent, with decreases in public works and interest. This decrease

is the result of a reduction in expenditures for infrastructure projects in 2008.

Business-type activities: Wholesale electric power costs are passed along to electric customers as a componeni of their bill. This
recovery resulted in a decrease in revenue, and coupled with lower operating expenses, increased the excess of revenue over expenses

by approximately $6.4 million.
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Marshfield, Wiscensin uses fund accounting to ensure and demonsiraie compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Marshfield’s governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Marshfield’s financing requirements. Specifically,
unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a govemnment’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin. At the end of the current fiscal year, unresetved fund
balance of the General Fund was $6,455,755 while fotal fund balance was $6,914,031. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may
be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance
represents 33 percent of total General Fund expenditures, white total fund balance represents 36 percent of that same amount.

At December 31, 2008, the governmental funds of City of Marshfield reported a combined fund balance of $8,408,396 a decrease of
$1,611,078 from last year. The decrease is attributable to issuance of $1,855,000 in debt in December 2007 for 2008 capital projects and
unexpended funds budgeted for 2008 cperations, fire station capital project and Yellowstone Industrial Park capital projects.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget
amendments fall into one of three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget
ordinance once more accurate information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources,
such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary fo maintain services or cover unanticipated
expenses. There were no significant budget amendments during the year.

Overall revenues were higher ($45,000) than budgeted amounts primarily because excess revenues offset revenue budget shortfalls.
Overall expenditures were less than budgeted {$470,000) due to actual and incurred costs being less than estimated for budgeting
purposes. The City had budgeted using fund balance (or having a deficit) of $751,761 for 2008, with actual utilization of $190,500.

Proprietary Funds. The City of Marshfield's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements but in more detail. Information on enterprise fund net asseis follows: -

Unrestricted Net Assets Change in Net Assefs

2008 2007 2008 2007
Marshfield Utilities $ 7851772 & 4797430 § 4152274 §  1,978211
Wastewater 1,142,652 2,063,901 774,955 533,906
EMS 405,425 278,975 108,852 120,989

Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's
business-type activities.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration w

Capital assets. The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activifies as of
December 31, 2008, totals $157,141,235 (net of accumulated depreciation), These assets include land, fand improvements, buildings,
construction in progress, and infrastructure.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the following additions (there were no significant demolitions or disposals}):
+ Green Acres street opening construction.

» Western Avenue reconstruction and storm sewer (St Joseph to Wood).
+ 80 Street reconstruction and storm sewer (Felker to Washington).
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City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s Capital Assets

Figure 3
{In Thousands of dollars)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activilies Total
2008 . 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Land and land improvements $ 7,950 $ 7,950 $ 1,877 § 1,880 $ 9827 $ 9,830
Buildings and improvements 19,131 18,922 28,058 28,006 47,189 46,928
Machinery and equipment 14,738 14,010 8,378 8,275 23,116 22,285
Infrastructure/systems 56,195 54,197 89,008 85,484 145,293 139,681
Improvements other than buildings 2,621 2,361 - - 2,621 2,361
Construction in progress 55 156 2,311 1,753 2,366 1,809
Less: Accumulated depreciation {35.058) {32,752) {38,213) (35.152) {73.271) (67.904)

TOTAL 3 85.633 $ 64,844 § 91.509 § 90,246 $ 157,141 $ 155,090

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the Comprehensive Annual Financial Statements, Note 5 -
Capital Assets. .

Long-term Obligations. As of December 31, 2008 the City of Marshiield, Wisconsin had total long-term obligations outstanding of

$81,816,192. Of this, $21,106,261 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The remainder of the Cify’s debt represents
mortgage revenue bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (.. revenue bonds) and compensated absences.

City of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s Outstanding Long-Term Obligations
Figure 4

{ln Thousands of dollars)

GGovernmental Business-Type
Aciivities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
General obligation bonds/notes  § 20,375 § 23,583 $ 731§ . 782§ 21,106 § 24,335
Mortgage revenue bonds - - 60,424 24,018 60,424 24,018
Other long-term obligations 286 283 - - 286 283
TOTAL ) § 20661 § 23,866 § 61,155 § 24771 § 81816 3 48,637

The Gity of Marshfield, Wisconsin’s total debt increased by $33,180,000 (68.2%) during the past fiscal year. This was due to the issuance
of $40.915 milfion in new debt by Marshfield Uiilities less scheduled principal payments of $7.828 million during the year.

The State of Wisconsin statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of govemment can issue fo 5 percent of total
* equalized value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal debt limit for City of Marshfield, Wisconsin is
$66,497,950.

Additional information regarding the City of Marshfield's long-term debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements, Note 6 -
Long-Term Obligations. -
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Economic Factors And Next Year’s Budgets And Rates

During 2004, the City of Marshfield considered formation of a Storm Water Utility for implementation in 2006, but elected not to do so.
Effective Novembet 1, 2006, the city was under a storm water discharge permit from the W1 Department of Natural Resources that outlined
standards the city is required to meet, with specific compliance deadlines for 2008 and 2013. The overali projected budgetary impact
through 2013 is $2.5 million, consisting primarily of capital improvements.

For 2009, the city budgeted issuance of $5.9 million in general obligation debt for capital projects including its' share of reconstruction
costs for Central Avenue through the entire length of the downtown. The city also plans to issue $1.2 million of sewer system revenue
bonds for approved capital projects. Issuance of additional general obligation debt is anticipated once final cost projections are established
for land acquisition, site development and construction of & new central fire station scheduled to stari in fate summer 2009.

The 2009 adopted General Fund budget is $20.86 million, an increase of 5.19% over the 2008 revised budget of $19.83 million. The
overall 2009 adopted budget for all funds is $40.31 million, an increase of 12.63% over the 2008 revised budget for all funds of $35.79
million. ‘Property taxes levied in 2008 for 2009 city purposes increased by $254,230. The tax rate for city purposes in 2008 for 2009
remained at $9.87.

During 2008, the following significant construction projects were completed:

s The $40 million Laird Center for Medical Research 112,300 square foot expansion, housing clinicians, scientists and staff
members of Marshfield Clinic’s Division of Laboratory Medicine, Research Foundation and Education Foundation

+  Marshfield Clinic expansion of the Ambulatory Surgery building constructed in 2002 by two floors was significantly completed at
an estimated value of $14 million when fully completed which brings its fotal square footage to 81,736

»  Felker Brothers Corporation 20,000 square foot expansion at an estimated value of $5.0 million

»  Baltus Properties, LLP construction of a new 6,500 square-foot conveniance store with carwash and Laundromat with an
estimated value of $800,000 on the north side of the community

»  High Street Travel and Salon new 4,416 square foot building in the downtown with an estimated value of $250,000 after being
displaced on this site due to a major fire destroying two buildings in the 200 block several years ago

Tax Incremental Financing District #7 (Yellowstone Industrial Park} was amended in April 2008 to support a signed development
agreement for adjoining property fotaling 88.1 acres of privately developed industrial park land. The purpose of the development
agreement is fo provide the developer incentive payment when a parcel is seld, a building constructed and permit for occupancy issued.
The first related industrial building canstruction project with an estimated value of $1.2 million was completed by the end of the year. The
developer also completed construction of 22,000 square foot speculation building within the amended TIF houndaries in 2008 at an
estimated value of $480,000.

Tax Incremental Financing District #7 (Yellowstone Industrial Park) was involved with a second signed devetopment agreement in October
2008. This project is for construction of an estimated $30 million industrial sand processing plant with rail access utilizing 57 acres.
Scheduled completion date for construction is late 2008.

Tax incremental Financing District #8 (Shoppes at Wood Ridge) was amended in April 2008 as part of on-going discussions for a potential
development agreement for adjoining properiy totaling 5.97 acres. This amendment was for the purpese of constructing of a new
extended stay motel, restaurant, and commetcial office space with an estimated total value of $9 million. Scheduled completion date for
this project has not been finalized.

The cify's electric uiility received approval to construct and own a new electric generating unit; the M-1 combustion turbine. The primary
purpose for the M-1 generation facility with an expected 55 MW capacity is to 1) further reduce Marshfield’s future demand-related electric
costs; 2) hedge future energy-related elactric costs; and 3) increase the reliability of electric service in Marshfield’s service territory and in
Eastern WI. $35 million in electric system revenue bond anticipation notes were issued to finance the project scheduled to start in 2009.

The city's water utility received approval to construct a new 0.5 million galfon water tower at an estimated cost of $1.6 million with revenue
bonds to be issued in 2009 and total project completion by mid-summer 2010, The city's electric and water utilities will submit rate
applications to the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin in 2008,

in 2005, as part of its’ biennial budget process, the State of Wl imposed a two-year property tax levy limit on alt W1 municipaiities that was
extended for bwo years in 2007. This tax levy limit impacted the City of Marshfield 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 budgets. For 2009, the city
was eligible to increase its tax levy by 3.97% over 2008 with allowable adjustment for increased debt service. The 2009 adopted budget
increased the tax levy by 2.27%. The govemor's proposed 2009-10 State budget includes a two-year extension of these levy limits that
would impact the City of Marshfield 2010 and 2011 budgets. Approval of this proposed extension of the levy limits is anticipated.

Requests for Information

This report is designed fo provide an overview of the City's finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions conceming any of the
information found in this report or requests for additional infermation sheuld be directed to the Finance Director, City of Marshfield, P.O.
Box 727, Marshfield, Wisconsin 54449,

-19-




BASIC
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS




CITY OF MARSHFIELD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2008
BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES : TOTAL

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents 8 10,080,022 § 4667053 § 14,756,075
investments 101,552 5,265,797 5,367,349
Receivables '

Taxes : ' : _ 9,632,088 91,297 9,723,385

Accounts : 10,744 2,844,354 2,855,008

Special assessments 888,307 43,865 932,172

Loans 904,963 - 904,963

Other 15,062 2,500 17,562
Inventories 82,091 1,088,847 1,170,938
Prepaids 155,796 5,784 161,580
Deferred charges - 1,068,684 - 1,068,684
Dug from other governments 240,547 5117 245,664
Internal balances 1,020,318 (1,020,318) -
Restricted asseis '

Cash and investments 735,194 40,174,045 40,909,239
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Land and construction in prograss 8,004,624 4,188,150 12,192,774

Buildings, systems and equipment _ 57,628,095 87,320,366 144,948,461

TOTAL ASSETS $ 89,508,403 $ 145745541 § 235,253,944
(Continued on page 21)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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. CITY OF MARSHFIELD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2008

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Other accrued expenses
Payable from restricted assets
Current portion of long-term debt
Other
Due to other governmenis
Unearned revenue
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Due within one year
Customer deposits
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for

Culture, recreation and education

Conservation and development

QOther purposes

Debt service

Perpetual care - nonexpendable
Unreshicted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

BUSINESS
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES AGIIVITIES TOTAL
$ 797531 § 2,368,954 $ 3,166,485
224710 92,876 317,586
20,888 778,442 799,330
123,603 1,592,044 1,715,647
- 118,029 118,029
62,013 - 62,013
12,651,882 2,719 12,654,601
3,678,387 180,000 3,858,387
350 877,133 877,483
16,858,419 59,382,739 76,242,158
34,418,783 65,392,936 - 899,811,719
49,358,157 66,060,210 115,419,367
330,633 - 330,633
- 1,695,226 - 1,695,226
112,543 - 112,643
24,829 4,848,441 4,873,270
219,820 - - 219,820
3,347 412 9,443,954 12.791.366
55,089,620 80,352,606 135.442,225

$ 89,508,403 $ 145,745,541 $_ 235253944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health-and human services
Culture, recreation and education
Conservation and development
Debt service

Interest and fiscal charges

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Electric
Water
Communications’
Wastewater
EMS ‘

TOTAL BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES

TOTAL

PROGRAM REVENUES
CHARGESFOR  OPERATING GRANTS CAPITAL GRANTS

EXPENSES SERVICES AND CONTRIBUTIONS ~ AND CONTRIBUTIONS

$ 3229005 $ 783,088 § 48,482 § -

7,366,395 319,526 136,376 -
6,690,349 133,232 2,484,975
461,958 132,075 -
3,136,079 37,457 342,548
833,929 59,973 18,000
934,124 -
22,651,839 1,745,351 3,030,381

24,666,782 26,470,222 250,475 -

2,483,984 3,500,614 505,056 -

28,707 66,386 7,602 -
3,691,492 4,912,487 -
875,900 928,755 55,783
31,746,874 35,878,464 818,916

$ 54,398,713 § 37,623,815 § 3,849,297 § -

General revenues

Property taxes

Public accomodation taxes

Other taxes and payments in lieu of tax
Unrestricted state shared revenues
Unrestricted investment eamings
Miscellaneous revenues

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year
Net assets - end of year

{Continuad on page 23)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

$ (2,397,435) $ (2,397,435)
(6,910,493) (6,910,493)
(4,072,142) (4,072,142)
(329,883) (329,883)
(2,476,074) (2,476,074)
(755,956 (755,956)
(934,124) (934,124)
(17,876,107) (17,876,107)

$ 2,053,915 2,053,915

1,521,686 1,521,686

45,281 45,281

1,220,095 1,220,995

108,629 108,629

4,950,506 4,950,506

(17,876,107} 4,950,506 (12,925 ,601)
12,152,349 - 12,152,349
310,200 - 310,200

125,787 125,787
5,758,678 - 5,758,678
519,600 1,525,548 2,045,148

195,002 (24,468) 170,534
1,375,603 (1,375,603) -
20,437,219 125477 20,562,696
2,561,112 5,075,983 7,637,005
52,528,508 75,276,622 127,805,130

$ 55,089,620 $ 80,352,605 $§ 135442225

The accompanying notes are an infegral part of these statements.
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ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
Loans
Other
Prepaids
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due fo
Other funds
Other governments
Deferred revenues

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for

Special revenue

Capital projects

Debt service

Other acfivities
Unreserved, designated

Special revenue

Capital projects
Unreserved, undesignated

Special revenug

Capital projects

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

OTHER TOTAL
DEBT  GOVERNMENTAL  GOVERNMENTAL

GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS
$ 4866519 $ 677377 § 4607270 § 10,151,166
6,719,544 1,969,996 - 8,689,540
54,849 - 942,548 997,397
888,307 - - 888,307
- 811,924 811,924
- 15,062 15,062
104,686 51,110 155,796
38,725 199,145 237,870
4,599,758 5,850 4,605,608
$ 17,272,388 $ 2,647,373 $ 6,632,909 § 26,552,670
$ 601,785 $ - $ 134,376 $ 736,161
11,668 - 3,577,249 3,588,917
12,013 - 50,000 62,013
9732891 2,622,544 1,401,148 13,756,583
10,358,357 2,622,544 5,162,773 18,143,674
1,407,178 1,407,178
- 731,224 731,224
24,829 - 24,829
104,686 - 219,820 324,506
"~ 353,590 - 353,590
- 1,230,321 1,230,321
- 1,569,584 1,560,584
6,455,755 - 6,455,755
22,986 22,986
(8,710,977) (3,710,977)
6,914,031 24,829 1,470.136 8,408,996
$ 17,272,388 §$ 2,647,373 $ 6,632,009 § 26,552,670

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 8,408,996
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of assets are different because:

Net capital assets used in governmental activities are not :
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 63,456,930

Some revenues are deferred in the funds because they are not available
to pay current period's expenditures - : 1,104,701

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet machinery and
equipment fo individual funds. The assets, liabilities and net assets of the internal service
fund are incfuded with governmental activities on the statement of net assets. 2,625,003

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and thersfore are not
reported in the funds. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in govetnmental
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities - both
current and long-term — are reported in the statement of net assets.

Accrued interest payable $  (224,710)

Bends and notes payable {19,995,045)

Compensated absences (286,255) (20,506,010}
Total net assets of governmental activities § 55,089,620

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

QOTHER TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUE GENERAL . SERVICE FUNDS FUNDS
Taxes $ 7007812 $ 2565136 $ 2,116,846 $ 12,589,794
Special assessments _ 433,610 - - 433,610
Intergovernmental revenues 7,831,861 . - 493,386 8,325 247
Licenses and permiis 192,218 - © 190,278 382,488
Fines, forfelts and penalties 141,603 - - 141,603
Charges for senvices 824,157 - 73,779 897,936
Other revenue 884,271 50,866 159,032 1,094,169
TOTAL REVENUES 18,215,524 2,616,002 3,033,321 23,864,847
EXPENDITURES
Current
General governmant 2,858,151 - 167,438 3,023,589
Public safety 7,108,076 - 18,355 7,126,431
Public works 5,756,699 - 330,604 6,087,393
Health and human services 165,838 - - 165,838
Culture, recreation and education _ 2,899,139 - 220,088 © 3,119,227
Conservaiion and development 391,262 - 406,182 797,444
Capital outlay 181,904 - 2,348,721 2,530,625
Debt service '
Principal retirement - 3,176,322 3,176,322
Interest and fiscal charges ’ - 886,209 28,250 . 914,459
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 19359,069 4,062,531 3,519,728 26,941,328
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {1,143,545)  (1,446,529) {486,407 (3,076,481
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term debt - - 89,800 89,800
Transfer from Enterprise Fund ' 900,603 475,000 - 1,375,603
Transfers in _ 69,042 925,710 2,150,363 3,145,115
Transfers out (16,600)  (1,817,080) {1,311,425) (3,145,115}
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - 953,045 (416,380) 928,738 1,465,403
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (190,500}  (1,862,900) 442 331 {1,611,078)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,104,531 1,887,738 1,027,805 10,020,074
 FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 6,914,031 § 24829 § 1,470,136 § 8,408,996

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Net change in fund balances - fotal governmental funds 3 {1,611,078)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

The acquisition of capital assets are reported in the govemmental funds as expenditures.
However, for governmental activities those costs are shown in the statement of net assets
and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual depraciation expenses in

the statement of activities.

Capital outlay reported in govemmental fund statements $ 2,530,625
Assets capitalized, not recorded as capital outlay 522,999
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities {2,197,525)
Book value of fixed assets disposed of during the year (20,078)
Amount by which capital cutlays are greater than '
depreciation in the current period. 836,021

-The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital asset
sales, frade-ins, and danations and changes in accrual of revenues that do
not provide current financial resources {2,695)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of flest
machinery and equipment to individual funds. The net revenue (loss) of certain
activiiies of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 266,077

Some capital assets acquired during the year were financed with loans. The amount of

the [oan is reported in the governmental funds as a source of financing. In the statement

of net assets however, loans are not reported as a financing source, but rather constitute a

- leng-term liability. The amount of loans reporied in the govemmental funds statement is: . (89,800)

Certain employee benefits are reported in the government funds when amounts are paid.
The statement of activities reports the value of benefits earned during the year. :
This year the accrual of these benefits increased by: (3,551)

Certain revenues are deferred in the governmental funds becauss they are
not available fo pay current period expenditures. In the statement of
activities these are recorded as revenue in the current year:
Special assessments to be collected after year end (4,726)

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is reported in the governmental
funds as an expenditure, but is reported as a reduction in long-term debt
in the statement of net assets and does not affect the statement of activities.
The amount of long-term debt principal payments in the current year is: 3,161,649

in govemmental funds interest payments on outstanding debt are reported as
-an expenditure when paid. In the statement of activities interest is reported
as it accrues.

The amount of interest paid during the current period 913,809

The amount of interest accrued during the current period (904,594)

Interest paid is greater (less) than interest accrued by 9.215
Change in net assets - governmental activities 8 2,561,112

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-27-




ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Special assessments receivable
Prepaid expenses
Bue from other funds
Due from other govermnments
Restricted assets, cash and investments
inventories

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Deferred charges
tnvestments

Capital assets, at cost
Land and construction in progress
Buildings, systems and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Net capital assels

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF MARSHFIELD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS AFJTIVITIES-
OTHER INTERNAL
MARSHFIELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILITIES WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL FUND
$ 3638354 § 631,380 § 397,31 9 & 4667053 $% 774,602
- 9,297 91,297 -
2,685,387 23,978 137,489 2,846,854 -
- 43,865 - 43,865
- 598 5,186 5,784 -
25,950 - 639,264 - 665,214 5,250
- 5117 5117 2,677
36,999,923 3,174,122 - 40,174,045 -
985,576 103,271 - 1,088,847 82,001
44,335,190 4,712,892 539,994 49,588,076 864,620
1,068,684 - - 1,068,684 -
5,265,797 - - 5,265,797 -
6,334,481 - - 6,334,481 -
4,158,189 29,961 - 4,188,150 20,728
76,022,821 48,753,654 757,093 125,533,568 6,654,606
(25,905,758) _ (11,856,664) {450,780}  {38,213,202) (4,495,244}
54,275,252 36,926,951 306,313 91,508,516 2,180,090
60,609,733 36,926,951 306,313 97,842,997 2,180,090
$ 104,944,923 $ 41639843 § 846,307 § 147431073 § 3,044,710
(Continued on page 29)

The accompanying nfoes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-
OTHER INTERNAL
MARSHFIELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILITIES WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL FUND
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES _
Accounts payable $ 27306765 % 90,099 § 16,195 § 2,413,059 § 61,720
Due to other funds 1,645,856 39,676 - 1,685,532 1,623
Accrued salaries, wages and
compensaied absences 727680 33977 16,785 778,442 10,972
Accrued interest - 92,876 - 92,876 9,916
Current portion of long-term debt 16,397 1,572,807 2,840 1,592,044 123,603
Deferred revenues - 2719 13,833 16,552 -
Customer advances 863,300 - - 863,300 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES PAYABLE
FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS
Accrued interest 118,029 - - 118,029
Current portion morigage revenue bonds 180,000 - - 180,000 -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,858,027 1,832,154 49,653 7,739,834 207,834
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term obligations 43,110,183 16,187,640 84,916 59,382,739 167,768
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 43,110,183° 16,187,640 84,916 50,382,739 167,768
TOTAL LIABILITIES 48,968,210 18,019,794 134,569 67,122,573 375,602
NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 46,450,622 19,303,275 306,313 66,060,210 1,753,004
Restricted for debt services 1,674,319 505,941 - 2,180,260 -
Restricted for other activities - 2,668,181 - 2,668,181 -
Unrestricted 7,851,772 1,142,852 405,425 9,399,849 916,104
TOTAL NET ASSETS 55,976,713 23,620,049 711,738 80,308,500 2,669,108
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 104,944,923 § 41639843 § 846,307 8 3,044,710
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds. 44,105

Net assets of business-type activities on statement of activities.

The accompanying ntoes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations and maintenance
General
Depreciation
Taxes

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUE {EXPENSE)
interest income
Interest and fiscal charges
Amortization of debt issue costs
‘Miscellanaous
Loss on disposals of fixed assets

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE

INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS

Contributions frorn custorners
Transfers to governmental funds

CHANGE iIN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - January 1

"NET ASSETS - December 31

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of infernal service fund activities related fo enterprise funds.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

GOVERNMENTAL

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES-

OTHER INTERNAL

MARSHFELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE

UTILITIES WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL FUND
$ 30037222 $ 4771661 § 084,538 35793411 § 2,004 641
23,654,352 2,148,152 808,441 26,628,045 1,435,790
539,599 - - 539,599 -
2,209,499 1,018,383 42,565 3,270,447 301,133
216,613 - - 216,813 -
26,620,063 3,164,535 871,006 29,784,508 1,736,923
3,417,159 1,607,116 113,532 5,137,807 287,718
1,439,689 85,636 203 1,525,548 -
(509,005) (559,165) (4,903} (1,073,073} (14,207
(58,099) - - {58,099) -
- - - - 32,468
(24,468) - (24,468) .
872,585 (497,997) {4,680) 374,588 18,261
4,289,744 1,108,119 108,852 5,507,715 305,979
763,133 140,836 903,969 -
(900,603) {475,000) (1,375,603) -
4,182,274 774,955 108,852 £,036,081 305,979
51,824,439 22,845,004 602,886 2,363,129
$ 55976713 § 23,620,048 3% 711,738 $ 2,669,108

39,902
5,075,983

Change in net assets of business-type activities on statement of activities.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES-
QTHER INTERNAL
MARSHFIELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILSTIES WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL FUND
CASH FLOWS FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 35437762 §$ 220718 $ 980,810 $ 36,639,200 $ 2,029,863
Payments to wastewater utility
(collection of wastewater revenue) (4,488,447) 4,488,447 - - -
Payments to suppliers and vendors (24,331,671) {1,211,565) (148,943}  (25,602,179) (1,061,298)
Payments to employaes (2,891,548) {B86,806) (682,592)  [(4,460,996) (399,219}
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,726,046 2,610,794 149,275 6,486,115 568,346
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer to governmentat funds - (900,603) (475,000) - (1,375,603) -
Public benefits receipts 194,003 - - 194,003 -
Payments for public benefits (192,571) - {192,571)
TOTAL CASH FLOWS USED IN NONGAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES {898,171) . {475,000 (1,374,171) -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES _
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (3,094,852) (1,109,866) (24,967)  (4,229,685) (265,393)
Payments payroll & benefits for employees - capitalized (331,688) - .- {331,688) -
Paymants for improvement of capital assets (39,022 - - (39,022}
Cost of retiring capital assets (86,409} - - (86,400) -
Interest paid (549,216} (559,165) {4908)  (1,113,284) {14,207}
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 63,299 - - 63,209 43,900
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds 3,841,200 - 3,841,200 -
Proceeds from bond anticipation notes 35,184,587 - - 35,184,597 -
Proceeds from note anticipation notes 1,828,936 - - 1,828,936 -
Principal payments of bonds payable (2,980,000) (1,529,838) - (4,509,838) {135,715}
~ Principal paymenis of bond anticipation notes (3,910,000) ) - - (3,210,000} -
Principal payments of GO refunding bonds (14,671) (3,961} (2,643 (21,175) -
Contributed capital 682,032 140,835 RS 822,867 -
Contributions refunded {100,402) . - {100,402} -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 30,493,804 (3,061,995) (32,413} 27,399,396 (371,415)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received ' 653,214 85,636 223 739,073 -
Purchase of investments (175,906} - - (175,906)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 477,308 85,636 223 563,167
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 33,797,987 (840,565) 117,085 33,074,507 197,931
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,840,290 4,646,067 280,234 11,766,591 576,671

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

BUSINESS-TYPE ENTERPRISE FUNDS GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES-
OTHER INTERNAL
MARSHMFIELD ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UTILITIES WASTEWATER FUNDS TOTAL FUND

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO CASH
PROVIDED {USED} BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ 3417159 § 1607116 § 113532 § 5137807 § 287,718
Adjusimants fo reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activifies
Depreciation charged to depreciation expense ’ 1,934,804 1,018,383 42,565 2,995,752 301,133
Depreciation charged to clearing account 307,960 - - 307,960 -
Changes in assets and liabililies
{Increase) decrease in assets :
Accounts receivable 209,412 (56,596) (16,311) 136,505 (56)

Prepaid expenses 8,000 437 (1,547) 6,800 -
Due from other funds 310 (5,880) - (5,580) © 5278
Inventories (111,456) (2,527) - (113,983) (27.817)
Increase {decrease) in current fiabilities .
Accounts payable (521,262) 44,006 {5,868) {483,124} 5,862
Due fo other funds 53,004 33 .- 53,335 @
Other accrued expenses (1,571,885) 5,534 16,904 (1,549,447) (2,965)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,726,046 2,610,794 149,275 6,486,115 569,346

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

Cash 3,638,354 631,380 397,319 4,667,053 774,602
Construction and special redemption investments 36,947,718 505,941 - 37,453,659 .
Revenue hend depreciation invesiments - 2,668,181 - 2,668,181
Customer deposits 52,205 - - 52,205

TOTAL CASH AND CASH FQUIVALENTS $ 40638277 $ 3805502 § 307319 §$.44841.008 $ 774602

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends reinvested C $ 148604 $ -3 - § 148604 §
Capital assets contributed by customers : - 140,836 - 140,836

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Other receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable

Payroll deductions

Bue to other govemments

TOTAL LIABILITIES
- NET ASSETS
Restricted

~ TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
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$ 5,068,281
13,800
13,750,335

8,832

3 18,841,248

$ 16,041
421,361

1840384
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of '
America as applicable io governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant policies.

Reporting Entity

The City of Marshfield, Wisconsin was incorporated July 16, 1883, under the provisions of Chapter 280, Laws of Wisconsin, 1883. The
City operates under a Council-Mayor form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter. public safety
{palice and fire), highways and streets, sanitation, health and social services, culture, recreation, education, public improvements, planning
and zoning, and general administrative services.

The City's financial statemerts do not include any component units, as defined in GASB 14, as there are no organizations which meet the
criterion.

The basic criterion for including a tegally separate organization as a Component Unit is the degree of financial accountability the City has
with the organization. The following circumstances set forth the City's financial accountability for a legally separate organization:

a. The City is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and (1) it is able to
impose its will on that organization or {2) there is a potential for the organization te provide specific financial benefits fo, or
impose specific financial burdens on the City. '

b, The City may be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the City regardless of whether the
arganization has (1} a separately elected governing board, (2) a governing board appeinted by a higher level of government,
or (3) a jointly appeinted board.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the reporting government as a whole. They inciude all
funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental activities generally are financed through iaxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

The statement of activities demnonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given funciion or segment are offsat by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. The City does not allocate indirect .
expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the cperational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not included
among program reveriues are reported as general revenues.

The business-type activities follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The City has slected not to

adopt the provision of GASB 20, paragraph 7, which states that all FASB statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989,
can be applied fo its proprietary funds. Unbilled utility receivables are not recorded as the amount is not material.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, including fiduciary funds. Financial statements of the reporting
entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self-balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, net assetsffund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, propristary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and
reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenes, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions-associated with the principal activity
of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues,
such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

Funds are organized as major funds or non-major funds within the govemmental and proprietary statements. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the governmentat and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City
or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least
10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and

b. The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the 10 percent test is at least 5 percent of
the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

c. in addition, any other governmental or proprietary fund that the City believes is particulatly important to financial statement
users may be reported as a major fund.

Basis of Presentation

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

Debt Service - Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and payment of, general long-term debt principal, interast,
and related costs.

The Gity reports the following major proprietary funds:

Marshfield Utilities - Al activities necessary to provide electric, water and telecommunication services to residenis of the City and
outlaying areas. Fund activities include administration, billing and collection, operations, maintenance, and financing.

Wastewater - This fund accounts for the maintenance of the City's sanitary sewer system. Wisconsin State Statutes Section
66.076, permit municipalities to implement sewer fees to recover the costs of operation, maintenance, repair, and depreciation of

- sewer collection and transportation facilities. Sewer maintenance costs are recovered through a user fee rather than through the
property tax.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Confinued
DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
Additionally, the City reports the foltowing fund types:

Internal service fund — Accounts for flest machinery and equipment provided io other depariments of the government, or to actual
parties, on a cost reimbursement basis.

Agency - This fund accounts for taxes and deposits collected by the City, acting in the capacity of an agent, for distribution to other
governmantal units or designated beneficiaries.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reporied using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expensas are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flow takes place. Non-exchange transacticns, in which the City receives value without directly giving
equal value in return, include propery tax revenue, grants, and other contributions. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period for which the levy is intended to finance, which is the year after the taxes are ievied. Taxes levied in 2008 that will
be collected in 2009 are recorded as receivable and deferred revenue. Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before
revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Eligibility includes timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the City must provide Iocal resources o
be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current pericd or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers all
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current year. Expenditures generally are recorded when the
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, principal and interest on general long-term debt, ciaims and judgments, and
compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Significant revenue sources, which are susceptible to accrual include property taxes, state share revenues, grants, contributions, and
interest. All other revenue sources including ficenses, permits, fines, and forfeits are considered to be measurabie and avaitable only when
cash is received.

Properiy iaxes are racorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred revenues. They are recognized as revenues in the succeeding
year when services financed by the levy are being provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the City is entitied the resources and the amounts are
available. Amounts owed to the City which are not avaifable are recorded as receivables and deferred revenues. Amounts received prior
to the entitlement period are also recorded as deferred revenues.

Special assessments are recorded as revenues when they become measurable and availabie as current assets. Annual instaliments due

" in future years are reflected as receivables and deferred revenues.

The City reports deferred revenues on its governmental funds balance sheet, which arise from taxes levied in the current year which are
for subsequent year's operations. For governmental fund financial statements, deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not
meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current petiod. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are
received before the City has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Gity has a legal claim fo the resources, the liability for
deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized.
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Basis of Accounting - Continued

The proprietary funds follow all pronauncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and have elected not to follow
Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989, The proprietary funds distinguish operating
revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operafing revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
praducing and delivering goods in connecion with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the water and sewer uiilities are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assats. All revenues and expenses not meefing this definition are
reported as nonaperating revenues and expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, as classified in the statement of cash flows, consist of all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of
three months or less.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amounts. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is believed that
the amount of such allowance would not be material. Unbilled utility services at year end are recognized as revenues and receivables in
the accompanying financial statements.

Inventory

Inventory is priced at the lower of cost (firsk-in, first-out) or market. The cost of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as
expenditures when purchased. .

Prepaid ltems

Cash payments benefiting future periods have been recorded as prepaid items. They will be reflected as expenditures or expenses when
incurred in the subsequent year. Prepaid items in governmental funds are reserved for in fund balance, because prepaids are not
expendable, available financial resources.

Due To/From Other Funds

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services rendered. These
receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the balance sheet.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Utility revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets
on the balance shest because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The "revenue bond construction” account is used to
report those proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in construction. The "revenue bond special redemption”
account is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months. The "revenue bond
depreciation” account is used to report resources set aside to meet unexpected contingencies or to fund asset renewals and replacements.

Other restricted assets include a "DNR Replacement Fund" which is required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for

repairs and maintenance on the Wastewater Utility plant. "Customer Deposits” are deposits made by the customers which are due to the
customers unless their bills are not paid.
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Coniinued

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which includes property, plant, and equipment, and infrastructure, are reported at cost or estimated historical cost if actual
cost is not avaifable. Contributed assets are reported af estimated fair value at the time received. General infrastructure assets, such as
roads, bridges, curbs, gutters, streets, sidewalks and drainage, and lighting systems, acquired prior to January 1, 2005, are reported at
estimated historical cost using prior financial information. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. The cost of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset's lives are not capitalized.

Major capital outlays for capital assets of business-type activities are included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Interest expenses incurred during construction are capitalized as part of the additions to capital assets.

Capitalizafion thresholds and the estimated useful lives are as follows:

Capital Asset Category Cﬂ:ﬁiﬁ ' Estimated Useful Life
Infrastructure $ 1,000 20-70
tand - N/A
Improvements 1,000 15-40
Buitdings 1,000 15-50
Machinery and equipment 1,000 | - 3-40
Compensated Absences

Vacation pay accumulates and is fully vested. All vacations are based upon the employee's anniversary date of hire. For substantially all
City employees, vacation time eatned and not taken at year-end must e used before their anniversary date in the subsequent year. All
earned vacation is pafd to terminating employees if they give at least two weeks notice prior to quitting, or, employees whose service is
being terminated due to discharge, death, or refirement shall receive all earned vacafion based upon actual months of service.

Sick leave can be accumulated up to a maximum of 120 days. All sick leave accumulated is cancelled when an employee leaves the
employ of the City. For one represented employes group the maximum accumutation is 60 days. These same represented employees
shall receive one additional day's pay for every month that they do not use sick leave after they've accumulated the maximum of 60 days.
Such payment shall be made on an annual basis.

Compensated absence expenditures and liabilities are recorded and adjusted to December 31st salaries/wages at the close of each fiscal
year.

Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during
the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuance are reporied as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuance are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Advance Refundings of Debt

In the govemment-wide and propristary fund financial statements, gains and losses from advance refundings of debt resulting in
defeasance are deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the shorter of the remaining life of the old debt or the life
of the new debt using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported nat of the applicable deferred amount,

Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, governmentat funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for specific purposes.

Net Assets

in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, equity is displayed in three components as follows:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted - This consists of net assets that are legally restricted by ouiside parties or by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for ugs, generally it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources when they are needed.

Unrestricted - This consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

State and Federal Aids

State general and categorical aids are recognized as revenue in the entitlement 'year. Federal aids for reimbursable programs are
recognized as revenue in the year related program expenditures are incurred. Aids received prior to meeting revenue recognition criteria
are recorded as deferred revenue.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are accounted for as revenue, expenses or expenditures in the fund financial statements. Transactions that
constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/axpenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are
recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. Al
other interfund transfers are reported as transfers.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this
general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes {which are reporied as transfers) and other charges between the government’s water and
wastewater function and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct cosis and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent asseks and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures/expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2-A - Cash and investments

State statutes permit the City to invest available cash balances, other than debt service funds, in time deposits of authorized depositoties,
state obligations, U.5. Treasury obligations, U.S. agency issues, repurchase agreements and other investments secured by federal
secutities, high grade commercial paper, and the local government pooled-investment fund administered by the state investment board.
Available balances in the Debt Service Fund may be invested in municipa! obfigations, obligaticns of the United States and the local
government pooled-investment fund. No significant viclations of these restrictions occurred during the year.

As of December 31, 2008, the City had the following investments.

Carrying

Investment Maturities Fair Value Amount
Federal Home Loan Consolidation Bonds Various dates from 2010-2013 $ 2,000,000 $& 2001111
State of Wisconsin Investment Pool Less than one year 53,896,621 53,896,621
Other March 30, 2010 19,966 19,966
Total Investments, December 31, 2008 ' $ 55916587 § 55.917.698

Fair (Market) Value of Deposits and investments - Deposits and investments are reported at fair valus. At December 31, 2008, the fair
value of the City’s deposits and investments approximated original cost, thersfore no fair value adjusiments were necessary.

Determining Fair Value - Fair value of the Cily's deposits and investments are determined as follows:

1)  Deposits and investments with stated interest rates (savings account and certificate of deposits) are stated at cost.

2) U.S. Treasury billsinotes are stated as amortized cost, and

3) State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool fair value is determined by the Pool's investment board based on published
market quotations.

Investment Pool Information - Participation in the State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Paol is voluntary. The Pool's
regulatory oversight is provided by state stafutes and its investment beard. The fair value of the City's position in the Pool is the same as

 the value of the Pool shares. At December 31, 2008, the Poofl's fair value was 100 percent of book value.

Income Allocation - Interest income is generally aflocated fo the fund that owns the certificate of deposit, money market account, savings
account, and investment. :

Interest Rate Risk. State statutes imit invesiments in commercial paper, corporate bonds, and mutual bond funds to mature or may be
tendered for purchase at the option of the holder within not more than 7 years of the date acquired. The City's investment policy does not
further limit investment maturities as a means of further managing its exposure fo fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk. State siatutes limit investments in commercial paper, corporate bonds, and mutual bond funds to the top two ratings issued
by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The City's investment policy does not further limit its investment choices. The
State of Wisconsin Investment Pool is unrated, however, the investments at all times consist solely of securities and instrument in which

Municipalities are permitted to invest. The Consolidation Bonds were rated AAA by Standard & Poor's and Meody's Investors Service.
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" NOTE 2-A - Cash and Investments - Continued

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returmned
to it. The City's investment policy requires collateral on cettificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of at least 110% of the market
value. As of Decernber 31, 2008, $6,837,507 of the City's bank balance of $7,050,707 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured, collateral pledged by.bank : $ 4,000,000
Uninsured and uncollateralized _ 2.837.507
$ 6,837,507

Other Investment — The Marshfield Utilities has invested in American Transmission Company, LLC (ATC). ATC is an electric power
group consisting of 28 Wisconsin Electric utilities. The Utility's investment gives the Utility approximately a .5% interest in ATC. This
investment is carried on the Utility's books at cost plus undistributed eamings. For the 2007 year-end the Utility received cash distributions
totaling $446,820. The Ulility's total eamnings for 2008 were $660,016. Separate financial information for ATC may be obtained by writing
to American Transmission Company, P.0.Box 47, Waukesha, Wi 53187-0047.

NOTE 3 - Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property in December when the tax roll is ceriified. Taxes are levied in December and
payable in two installments on January 31 and July 31, or payable in full on January 31. Special assessments, charges, and personal
property taxes are payable in full on January 31. The City bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes for the State, County,
Technical College, and Public Schools until February 1, at which time all uncollected real estate taxes are turned over to the respective
counties for collection. Collection of the taxes and remittance of them fo the appropriate entities are accounted for in the Tax Agency Fund.
City property tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied for and available for use. The 2008 tax roll (levied for 2009) has been set
up as a receivable and offset by the amounts due to other governmental units and deferred income tax revenue for the City's portion.
Advance tax collections are offset against the receivable.

NOTE 4 - Rehabilitation Loans

The Gity has outstanding Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) loans receivable with various businesses and homeowners.
These loans are originally made from grant proceeds. The loan agreements provide for various repayment options, including instaliment
payments and payment in full upon transfer of the property secured by the loans. When the ioans are repaid, the funds become the
property of the City and are restricted for future rehabilitation loan projects. The loan activity for the year was as foltows:

Balance Payments & Balance
1/1/08 Additions Foreclosures 12/31/08
Community Development Block
Grant Program $ 109,423 § - 3 - & 109423
Residential Revolving Loan . 186,626 - 2,100 184,526
TOTAL $ 296049 § - 8 2100 § 293,949
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NOTE 5 - Capital Asseis

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2008, was as follows:

-49.

BALANCES - BALANCES
1/1/08 ADDITIONS BRETIREMENTS 12/31/08
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land : $ 7040656 % - % - § - 7949656
Construction in progress . 156,692 54,968 156,692 54,968
Total capital assets not being depreciated ‘ 8,106,348 54,968 166,692 8,004,624
Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 18,921,560 209,369 19,130,869
Infrastructure 54,197,423 1,898,000 56,195,432
Improvements other than buildings 2,360,592 260,674 - 2,621,266
Machinery and equipment 14,009,770 956,070 227,576 14,738,264
Total capital assets being depreciated 89,489 345 3,424 062 227,578 92,685,831
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings 7,173,425 484,072 - 7,657,497
Infrastructure 14,397,148 1,330,546~ 15,727,604
Improvements other than buildings 612,714 85,6821 - 698,535
Machinery and equipment 10,568,534 598,219 192,745 10,874,008
Total accumutated depreciation 22,751,821 2,498,658 192,745 35,057,734
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 56.737.524 925,404 34,831 57,628,097
- Government Activity Capital Assets, Net $ 64843872  § 980372 & 191523 § - 65,632,721
Depreciation expense for gm.}ernmental activities was charged to functions as follows:
General government $ 190,202
Public safety . 254,155
Public works 1,451,127
Culture, recreation, and education 296,120
Conservation and development 5,021
Cther 301,183
Total 3 2,498,658




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE & - Capital Assets - Continued
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BALANCES BALANCES
1/1/08 ADDITIONS RETIREMENTS 12/31/08
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITES '
Capital assets not being depreciated.
Land $ 1,879,863 § - § 2680 % 1,877,183
Construction in progress 1,752,578 3,698,214 3,139.828 2,310,964
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,632,441 3,698.214 3,142,508 4,188,147
‘Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 27,800,197 278,644 20,822 28,058,019
Infrastructure/systems 85,690,414 3,720,381 312,998 89,097,797
Machinery and equipment 8,274,946 228,635 125,826 8,377,765
Total capital assets being depreciated 121,765,557 4,227,660 459,646 125,533.571
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 7,806,682 718,636 1,896 B,613,422
Infrastructure/systems 22,415,821 2,285,445 390,345 24,310,921
Machinery and equipment . 4,839.206 . 568,544 118,891 5,288,859
Total accumulated depreciation 35,151,708 3,572,625 511,132 38,213,202
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 86,613.848 655,035 (51,486) 87,320,369
Business-Type Activity Capital Assets, Net $ 90246289 § 4353249 % 3.091.022 91,508,516
Depreciation expense for husiness-type activities was charged to functions as follows:
Electric $ 1,058,001
Water 495,149
Communications 18,511
Wastewater 1,058,309
Emergency Medical Services 42 565
Total 3 3,572,625
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NOTE 6 - Long-Term Obligations

Details of the City's long-term obligations are set forth below.

Summary of Long-Term Obligations AMOUNTS
BALANCES BALANCES DUE WITHIN
11408 . ADDITIONS PAYMENTS 12/31/08 ONE YEAR
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
- General obligation debt
Bonds payable . $ 10,502,718 § - 8 943826 $ 9,558,802 $ 976,336
Notes payable 12,925,000 - 2,320,000 10,605,000 2,370,000
State Trust Fund Loan 155,000 89,800 . 33,532 211,261 38,528
Other long-term obligations
Vacation pay and comp time 282,704 - 286255 282,704 286,255 286,255

Total Governmental Activities $ 23865422 % 376,055 $ 3580069 $§ 20661408 $ 3,671,119

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES :
General Obligation Bonds $ 752,282 § - $ 21,174 § 731,108 § 23,664
Mortgage Revenue Bonds 24,018,514 3,880,000 4,509,838 23,388,676 1,748,380
Bond Anticipation Note 3,910,000 35,165,000 3,810,000 35,165,000 -
Note Anticipation Note - 1,870,000 - 1,870,000

Total Business-Type Activities $ 28680796 $§ 40915000 $§ 8441012 § 61154784 § 1,772,044
General Obligation Debt

All general obligation debt is secured by the full faith and credit and unlimited taxing powers of the City. The general obligation debt is
expected to be repaid with general property taxes, and special assessments. General obligation debt at December 31, 2008, is comprised
of the following issues:

: DATES OF BALANCE
ISSUE DESCRIPTION BATES (%) MATURITY 12/31/08
Bonds Payable '
12-98 5.15-6.50 4-18 $ 775,000
5-01 ‘ 5.55 - 6.65 3-21 590,000
1-03 2.00-4.05 4-16 1,455,000
3-03 ' 513-5.70 12-22 2,935,000
5-04 1.40-4.10 4-17 1,760,000
5-04 3.50-5.50 4-15 500,000
5-05 ' 3.45-3.60 5-15 2,275,000
Notes Payable :
5-H 3.70-4.50 3-11 990,000
5-02 3.00-4.25 3-12 1,660,000
1-03 2.00- 3.60 312 1,080,000
3-06 3.5-3.625 3-16 2,805,000
12-06 3.55-3.7 3-16 : 2,235,000
12-07 35 3-17 1,855,000
State Trust Fund Loan
10-06 5 311 121,461
12-08 4.75 1-14 89.800
Total General Obligation Debt $ 21,106,261
Less General Obligation Debt to be repaid by Enterprise Funds 731,108
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT §  20.375.153
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Enterprise Fund Debt

Enterprise Fund debt is expected to be repaid with Enterprise Fund revenue. The morigage revenue bonds are expected to be repaid with
electric, water and wastewater revenue. Enterprise Fund debt at December 31, 2008, is comprised of the following issues:

DATES OF BALANCE
ISSUE DESCRIPTION o RATES (%) . - MATURITY ’ 12/31/08
Mortgage Revenue Bonds '
398 2.761 5-17 1,780,035
9-08 2.761 5-18 12,148,641
6-02 3.0-435 12-11 390,000
503 2.00-3.50 5-13 775,000
5-05 4,125 - 4.65 - 520 1,470,000
10-08 : 3.55-4.50 1226 - 1,495,000
12-06 3.6-4.00 5-21 1,450,000
7-08 6.125 12-18 3,880,000
7-08 475 7-11 . 1,870,000
12-08 4.0 12-10 35,165,000
General Obligation Bonds
3-03 513-5.70 ' 12-22 731,108
TOTAL ENTERPRISE DEBT $  61,154.784

General Obligation Debt Limit Calculation

The 2008 equalized valuation of the City as certified by the Wisconsin Depariment of Revenue is $1,329,959,000. The leg.al debt fimit and
margin of indebiedness as of December 31, 2008 in accordance with Section 67.03(1)(b) of the Wisconsin Stafutes follows:

Debt limit (5% of $1,3298,959,000) - $ 66,497,850
Applicable long-term debt {21,106,261)
Amount available in debt service fund 24,829

_ Margin of Indebtedness $ 45416518

Maturities of Long-Term Obligations

Maturities of the long-term debt fo maturity, at December 31, 2008, are:

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT, ENTERPRISE FUND DEBT

YEARS PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST
2009 $ 3384884 $ 765809 § 1772,043 § 2,143,858
2010 2,993,054 646,675 37,006,249 2,303,146
2011 2,682,586 537,088 3,973,158 838,758
2012 2,327,617 438,020 2,067,048 877,662
2013 1,727,635 358,082 2,174,432 606,458

2014-2018 ' 6,028,445 853,899 11,664,005 1,848,360
2018-2023 1,230,952 162,004 2,153,848 267,690
2024-2028 - - 345,000 31,445

TOTAL . $ 20375153 § 3762577 $ 61154784 @ §  8.715377
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NOTE 7 — Conduit Debt Obligations

From time to time, the City has issued industrial revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition
and construction of industrial and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from debt payment receipts on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership
of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the City, the State, nor any political
subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabifities in the
accompanying financial statements.

As of December 31, 2008, there were three series of industrial revenue bonds outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of
$5,775,000. ‘ '

NOTE 8 - Defined Benefit Pension Pians

All eligible City of Marshfield employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined
benefit, public employee retirement system. All permanent employees expected fo work over 600 hours a year are eligible fo participate in
the WRS. Covered employees in the General category are required by statute to contribute 6.0 percent of their salary (3.0 percent for
Elected Officials, 5.1 percent for Protective Qccupations with Social Security, and 3.4 percent for Protective Cccupations without Social
Security) to the plan. Employers may make these contributions to the plan on behalf of employees. Employers are required to contribute
an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund the remaining projected cost of future benefits.

The payroll for City of Marshfield employees coverad by the WRS for the year ended December 31, 2008, was $11,811,954, the employer's
total payroll was $12,363,495. The total required contribution for the year ended December 31, 2008, was $1,651,988 which consisted of
$1,049,466 or 8.9 percent of payroll from the employer and $602,521 or 5.1 percent of payroll from employees. Total contributions for the
years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006, were $1,598,993 and $1,558,514 respeciively, equal to the requited contributions for each
year.

Employees who retire at or after age 85 {62 for Elected Officials and 54 for protective occupation employaes with less than 25 years of
service, 53 for protective occupation employees with more than 25 years of service) are entitled to receive a retirement benefit.

Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for Protective Occupation employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors
influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a formula factor. Final average earnings is
the average of the employee’s three highest years' eamings. Employees terminating covered employment and submitting application
before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may withdraw their confributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights fo any subsequent
benefit. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998,
creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after
April 24, 1998, are immediately vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees; Eligibility and the amount of all benefits are determined under

Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. The WRS issues an annual financial report that may be obtained by writing io the Department of
Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, Wl 53707-7931. '
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NOTE 9 - Post-Empioyment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits provided to employees through the Wisconsin Retirement Fund, the City provides the following post-
employment benefits: )

Upon termination of & non-represented employee who has worked at least 20 years for the City and has accepied fo receive an annuity or
disability from the Wisconsin Retirement System, the City will deposit the equivalent dollar value of the employee’s accumulated unused
sick leave balance, up to a maximum of 960 hours, into the employee’s Post Employment Health Plan. Unused sick leave balances can
only be utilized for medical insurance premiums. At the employees’ discretion, contributions are invested in various invesiment
instruments offered by the plan administrator. The accumulated balance of contributions to the plan can be utilized for any future medical
expanses and/or medical insurance by the former employee.

The estimated future liability for current employees is undeterminable and therefore is not recorded as a fiability. The City currently pays
1.0% of wages on non-represented employees into a liability account to fund the future obligations of the City for this plan. As of
December 31, 2008, the City has $267,350 accumulated for payments that may be required in the future.

NOTE 10 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2008, are as follows:
FUND DUETO DUE FROM
General Fund 5 4,599,758 $ 11,668

Other Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Taxi System 70,145
Cable Television 180
Capital Projects Funds
Infrastructure Construction Capital Outiay 5,850 -
Parks/Recreation/Zoo Capital Outlay - 4,914
TID #4 1,816,840
TID #5 1,545,873
THD #6 32,398
TID #8 6,699
Enterptise Funds
Marshfield Utilities 25,950 1,646,868
Wastewater Utility 639,264 39,676

Internal Service Fund
Vehicles and Equipment

5,250

$ 5,276,072

1,623

5,276,072

Balances resutted from the timing differences between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable
expenditures occur, (2) fransactions are recorded in the accounting system, (3) payments between funds are made, (4) and funds
overdraw their share of pocled cash or when there are transactions befween funds where one fund does not participate in the City’s pooled
cash.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
' DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE 10 - Interfund Receivables, Pavabies, and Transfers - Continued

individual fund transfers during 2008 are as foliows:

FUND TRANSFERS IN TRANSFERS QUT
General Fund : $ 969,645 5 16,800
Debt Service Fund

Long-term Notes 1,400,710 _ 1,817,080

Other Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Parks Outiay-Room Tax _ - 182,673
Convention and Vistiors Bureau 171,506 -
Economic Development - 168,193
Capital Projects Funds _
infrastructure Construction Capital Cuitay 897,802 ' 29,500
Public Facilities Capital Qutlay 66,600 1,171
Public Safety Capital Qutlay 605,000 -
Parks/Recreation/Zoo Capital Qutlay _ 143,167 -
TiD #3 " 20,338
TiD #2 - 101,867
TiD #4 - 624,007
TID #6 - 3,486
TID #5 - 176,011
THD #7 . - 266,288 -
Enterprise Funds
Electric and Water Utility - - 900,603
Wastewater Utility - 475,000

Permanent Fund
Perpetual Fund -

4179

g 4,520,718 4,520.718
Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collection from to the fund that statute or budget
required fo expend them. {2} move receipts restricted to debt setvice from the funds collecting the receipts fo the debt service fund as debt
service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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_ NOTE 13 - innt Ventures

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE 11_— Fund Equity

Reservations and Designations

Governmental fund balances are reserved for special revenue funds (specific purposes and long-term receivables}, debt service funds
(debt retirement), capital project funds (debt covenants and projects), and other activities (perpetual care). General Fund has reserved
fund balance for prepaid items. '

Fund balances have also been designated for specific purposes in the special revenue and capital projects funds, and for subsequent
budgets in the general fund.

Deicits
The following individual funds had deficits at December 31, 2008:

Special Revenue Funds ' Business Improvement District $ 2,447
Capital Project Funds T.I.D. #4 (Downtown Redevelopment) 2,071,300
T.1.D. #5 (Mill Creek Business Park) 1,591,003
T.1.D. #6 (Figi Project) 32,398
T.1.D. #8 (Shoppes at Woed Ridge) 16,276

The deficits in the Tax incremental Finance Districts {T.1.D.’s) are expected to be funded through future tax increments, and the remaining
deficits wilt be funded by future revenues.

NOTE 12 - Risk Management .

- The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; ertors and omissions; injuries to

employees; and natural disasters. The City manages these risks through the purchase of various forms of commercial insurance. Certain
of the commercial insurance policies have established deductible amounts whereby the City would be responsible for the portion of claims,

~ losses and damages under the deductible limits. All funds participate in the coverages provided by the commercial insurance carriers.

Each fund would be responsible for its share of losses either below the deductible amounts or for losses exceeding the coverage limits of
the commercial policies.

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverages from the prior year. There were no seiflements that exceaded insurance
coverages in any of the last three years.

hMarshfield Fairgrounds Commission - The Marshfield Fairgrounds Commission is a joint venture between the Common Councit of the
City of Marshfield and the Wood County Board of Supervisors for the improvement, maintenance, repair and operation of the Marshfield
Fairgrounds. The Commission Board consists of six members: three aldermen from the City of Marshfield who are appeinted by the mayor
with approval of the council, and three county board supervisors who are appointed by the chairman of the Wood County Board with
approval of the county board. The Fairgrounds Commission has the full, complete and exclusive jurisdiction of the fairgrounds. The City of
Marshfield is to provide the necessary funds for the maintenance of the land, exclusive of the buildings and similar structures, while Wood
County is providing funds for the construction, improvement, repair and maintenance of the buildings located on the Marshfield
Fairgrounds, other than such properties owned by third parties. Any buildings or structures constructed upon the fairgrounds by the
Commission become the property of the City of Marshfield. Accordingly, the real estate and related buildings are capitalized in the
governmental activities’ capital assets. Complete separate financial statements for the Fairgrounds Commission may be obtained at the
Finance Depariment, City of Marshfield, 630 8. Central Avenue, Marshfieid, W 544489,
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE 13 - Joint Ventures - Continued

University Extension Center Commission - The University Extension Center Commission is a joint venture betwaen the Common
Council of the City of Marshfield and the Wood County Board of Supervisors for the purchase of the site and construction of said center,
and the care, custody, maintenance, improvement and repair of the lands and buildings during its operation as a University Extension
Center. The Commission Board consists of six members: three aldermen of the City of Marshfield who are appointed by the mayor with
approval of the council, and three county board supervisors who are appointed by the chairman of the Wood County Board with approval
of the county board. Before September of every year, the Commission submits to the Marshfield Common Couneil and the Wood County
Board a budget indicating the amount needed from each governing body to defray the costs of maintenance, care, custody, repair and
improvement of the buildings an premises of the University of Wisconsin - Marshfield/Wood County for the ensuing year. Each municipal
unit has a 50% share of the venture, and accordingly, the City's 50% share is capitalized in the governmental activities’ capital assets.
Complete separate financial statements for the University Extension Center Commission may be obtalned at the Office of the Finance
Department, 630 S. Central Avenue, Marshfield, W1 54449,

NOTE 14 - Continqencies and Commitments

Legal Contingencies

The City participates in a number of intergovernmental grant programs, which have various requirements, and are subject to audit by the
awarding agencies. Such audits may result in reimbursements of funds advanced or disalfowance of program expenditures. The amount,
if any, of grant funds which may be disallowed by the grantor at future dates cannot be determined.

There are several lawsuits pending in which the City is involved. The City's attorneys estimate the potential claims resulting from litigation
against the City that are not covered by insurance would not materially affect the financial statements of the City.

In 2008 the City issued $35,165,000 in bond anticipation notes fo begin construction of a new combustion turbing generator {designated

“M-17) to be located in the City of Marshfield. The estimated cost of M-1 is $34.7 million with expected completion in early 2010. Design
work as begun, but no construction has commenced as of December 31, 2008.
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

] VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 7882137 § 7882137 $ 7907812 § 25,675
Special assessments 345,000 345,000 433,610 . 88,610
Intergovernmental revenues 7,863,636 7,897,494 7,831,861 (65,633)
Licenses and permits 164,650 164,650 192,210 27,560
Finas, forfeits and penalties 195,000 195,000 141,603 (53,397)
Charges for services 791,416 801,809 824,157 22,348
Other revenue 857,974 884,867 884,271 (596)
TOTAL REVENUES 18,099,813 18,170,957 18,215,524 44,567
EXPENDITURES
Current .
General government ' 3,079,246 3,067 426 2,856,151 211,275
Public safety 7,107,008 7,171,361 7,108,076 63,285
Public works 5,625,002 5,725,803 5,756,699 (30,898)
Health and human services 171,173 172,372 165,838 6,534
Culture, recreation and education 2,985 252 3,002,644 2,899,139 103,505
Conservation and development 534,831 484,738 391,262 93,476
Capital outlay ' 242 250 204 462 181,904 202,558
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 19,744,762 19,828,806 19,358,068 © 489,737
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES {1,644,949)  (1,657,849)  (1,143,545) 514,304
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer from Enterprise Fund 850,000 850,000 900,603 50,603
Transfers in 794,954 824,454 69,042 (755,412
Transfers out - {16,600) (16,600) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANGING SOURCES {USES) 1,644,954 1,657,854 953,045 (704,809)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 5 5 (180,500) {190,505}
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,104,531 7,104,531 7,104,531
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 7,10453 $ 7104536 $ 6914031 § {190,505)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ON BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING AND CONTROL
DECEMBER 31, 2008

General Policies - The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

Annual budgets, as required by state statutes, are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for ail
governmental funds except those noted later (those funds for which multi-year project budgets are approved). Appropriations lapse at
year-end except those separately identified as designated for subsequent years' expenditures.

In August of each year, all agencies of the City submit requests for appropriations to the City Administrator so-that a budget may be
prepared. Prior to October 15, the City Administrator submits to the Gommon Council a proposed operating budget, including capital
expenditures, for the fiscal year commencing January 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. A
public hearing is heid in the Common Councit chamber to obtain taxpayer comments. Prior to December 1, the budget is legally adopted
by the Common Council through the passage of a resolution.

The adopted budgst is prepared by fund, function and sub-function (departments, activities or projects) level. The City's department or
division heads may make transfers of appropriations within a sub-function upon approval of their respective commissions, boards or
commitiees. Transfers of appropriations between sub-function require the approval of the Common Council. The legal level of budgetary
control is the sub-function level. Expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations at this level without two-thirds Common Council
approval to amend the budget. The Common Council properly authorized all supplemental appropriations during the year, totaling
$100,643.

Although there are adopted budgets for the enterprise funds and the internal service fund, budget to actual data is not shown since there is
no requirement under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles to present budget to actual comparisons for enterprise funds and
internal service funds as part of the general purpose financial statements, even if annual budgets are iegally adopted for these funds.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund, the Special Revenue
Funds, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. Capital project funds may include multi-year projects and the associated
expenditures and revenues are budgeted only during the initial year of the projects although annual auditing fees and transfers may be
budgeted on an ongoing basis. Subsequent year expenditures for multi-year projects are achieved through utilization of the remaining
fund balances,

Encumbrances - Encumbrance accounting is not used.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations - For the year ended December 31, 2008, expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts for
public works i the general fund by $30,896. These over expenditures were funded by available fund balance in the general fund.
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INFORMATION

General Fund

The general fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government which are not required legally or
by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund

\
\
! s Long-Term Notes —to accumulate monies for payment of all long-term notes and bonds except for those notes to be
‘ paid by Proprietary Fund user fees. Property taxes are levied to finance the debt service.
s  State Trust Fand Loan — to accumulate monies for payment of all state trust fund loans. Property taxes, including
f those on certain Tax Incremental Districts, are levied to finance the debt service.
| ¢  General Obligation Refunding Bonds — to accumulate monies for payment of the refunding issues. Property faxes are
| levied to finance the debt service.




Taxes
Property
Sales and use
Payment in lisu of taxes
Interest and penalties on taxes

TOTAL
Special Assessments

Intergovernmental revenues
State shared revenues
State grants
State payments
Grants from local governments

TOTAL

Licenses and Permiis
Liguor and malt beverage license
Nonbuiness license
Building permits
Zoning permits and fees

TOTAL

Fines, Forfeits and Penalties
Law and ordinance violations

Public Charges for Services
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Sanitation and utilities
Health
Human services

Culture, recreation and education

Conservation and developmant
Other charges for services

TOTAL

CITY OF MARSHFIELD
GENERAL FUND
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS
$ 7,759,286 $ 7,759,286 § 7,780,567
120 120 109
121,931 121,931 125,678
800 800 1,458
7,882,137 - 7,882,137 7,907,812
345,000 345,000 433,610
5,875,047 5,875,047 5,754,774
1,691,169 1,621,827 1,676,241
118,425 118,425 113,078
278,805 282,195 287,768
7,863,636 7,897,494 7,831,861
48,450 46,450 52,920
10,200 10,200 10,423
100,000 100,000 120,515
8,000 8,000 8,352
164,650 164,650 192,210
195,000 195,000 141,603
29,875 29,875 21,866
24,400 24,400 27,042
76,600 76,500 144,207
-3,100 3,100 10,367
166,160 106,160 113,117
1,416 1,416 1,747
316,453 326,846 317,457
500 500 1,640
1,000 1,000 1,232
559,404 638,675

569,797
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DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Intergovernmental charges for services
State
Other local governments
Local departments

TOTAL

Other
Interest
Rent
Donations
Sale of other equipment and property
Other miscellaneous revenues -

TOTAL

TOTAL REVENUES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD
GENERAL FUND
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BUDGETED AMCUNTS ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS
$ 14,000 $§ 14,000 § B574
113,150 113,150 98,085
104,862 104,862 78,813
232,012 232,12 185,482
460,000 490,000 465,410
336,584 335,584 332,461
26,182 28,586
32,390 33,101 26,041
- - 31,773
857,974 884,867 884,271
$ 18,099,813 § 18,170,957 § 18,215,524




DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

General Government
Leqislative
Legal
General administration
Financial administration
General buildings and plant
Other general government

TOTAL

Public Safety
Law enforcement
Fire protection
Inspection
Emergency communications
Disaster control

TOTAL

Public Works
Administration for highway and streets
Highway and street maintenance
Road refated facilities
Other transportation
Sanitation

TOTAL

Heafth and Human Services
Cemetary
Aging
TOTAL

Culture, Recreation and Education
Culture
- Parks
Recreation programs and events
Recreation facilities
Zoo
Education

TOTAL

CITY OF MARSHFIELD
GENERAL FUND
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BUDGETED AMQUNTS ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS

$ 8i832 § 81,832 § 73,071
169,186 169,185 136,124
1,413,550 1,458,437 1,381,774
923,243 866,537 773,650
300,145 300,145 300,654
191,250 191,290 170,878
3,079,246 3,067,426 2,856,151
4,089,910 4,125,710 4,145,513
2,525,963 2,564,116 2,510,656
334,185 334,585 311,830
132,709 132,709 132,709
14,241 14,241 7,368
7,107,008 7,171,361 7,108,076
560,983 568,783 536,890
3,092,625 3,314,726 3,438,201
1,025,207 898,106 900,840
221,455 221,456 156,079
724,732 724,732 724,689
5,625,002 5,725,803 5,756,699
145,677 146,876 140,712
25,496 25,436 25,126
171,173 172,372 165,838
1,405,324 1,409,524 - 1,433,184
676,914 693,594 622,758
462,460 457,160 415476
143,610 143,611 142,681
251,851 253,662 240,035
45,093 45,093 45,005
2,985,252 3,002,644 2,899,139

{Continued on Page 56)




CITY OF MARSHFIELD
GENERAL FUND
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

BUDGETED AMOUNTS _ ACTUAL
QRIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS

Conservation and Development
Economic development 3 10,485 3 10438 § 13,505
Other conservation and development 524,346 474 252 371,757
TOTAL _ 534,831 434,738 391,262
Capital Outlay 242,250 204,462 181,904
TOTAL ' 242 250 204,462 181,904
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 19744762 $ 19,828,806 $ 19,359,069
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
DEBT SERVICE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE WITH
BUDGETED AMQUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes $ 2565136 $ 2565136 § 2565136 §
Other revenue 50,865 50,866 50,866
TOTAL REVENUES 2,616,002 2,616,002 2,616,002
EXPENDITURES
Current
Principal retirement 3,176,321 3,176,321 3,176,322 0}
Interest and fiscal charges 840,390 840,390 886,209 (45,819)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,016,711 4016711 4,062,531 (45,820)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,400,709) . (1,400,709 (1,446,529) (45,820}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term deht - - -
Transier from Enterprise Fund 475,000 475,000 475,000
Transfers in 925,710 925,710 925,710 -
Transfers out - (1,317,090 {1,817,090)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURGCES (USES) 1,400,710 1,400,710 (416,380) {1,817,090)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1 1 (1,862,909) (1,862,310)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,887,738 1,887,738 1,887,738
FUND BALANCES AT ENP OF YEAR $ 1,887,739 § 1,887,739 § 24829 § (1,862,910)
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-~ NONMAJOR
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for particular
purposes.

Capital Project Funds

Capital project funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities other than those
financed by proprietary funds and trust finds.

Permanent Fund

Permanent funds are used to report resourced that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, not principal, may be
used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs

*  Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund — to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for the perpetual care of the
City’s cemetery. The principal amount of the monies received are maintained intact and invested. Investment earnings

are receipted in the General Fund and used to offset perpetual care costs.




“CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

PERMANENT TOTAL
___FUND NONMAJOR
SPECIAL CAPITAL PERPETUAL GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUE PROJECTS CARE FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 1902321 § 2511469 $ 193,480 § 4,607,270
Receivables
Accounts 99,704 842,844 - 942,548
Loans 811,924 - - 811,924
Other : 14,832 - 230 15,062
Prepaids ' 26,110 25,000 - 51,110
Capital Assels : - - - -
Due from . :
Other funds _ - 5,850 - 5,850
Other governments ' 109,345 89,800 - 199,145
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2964236 $ 3,474,963 § 193,710 § 6,632,909
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 54910 § 79466 §$ - § 134,376
Due to
Other funds 70,325 3,506,924 - 3,577,249
Other governments - 50,000 - 50,000
Deferred revenues 152,406 1,248,742 - 1,401,148
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 277,641 4885132 - 5,162,773
NET ASSETS
Reserved for
Special revenue funds 1,407,178 - - 1,407,178
* Capital projects - 731,224 - 731,224
Other activities - prepaids 26,110 - - 26,110
Other activities - nonexpendable trust - 193,710 193,710
Unreserved
Designated - conservation and development 1,230,321 - 1,230,321
Designated - capital outlay - . 1,569,584 - 1,569,584
Undesignated 22,986 {3,710,977) - (3,687,991)
TOTAL NET ASSETS 2,686,595 {1,410,169) 193,710 1,470,136

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,964,236 § 3,474,963 $ 193,710 § 6,632,908
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

CONVENTION
ROCM & VISITORS RESIDENTIAL
TAX BUREAU REHABILITATION
FUND FUND FUND
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 2014090 § 142514 § 189,089
Receivables
Taxes -
Loans - 293,949
Other 8,901 3,195
Prepaids 26,110
Due from other governments -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 210,310 § 171,819 § 483,038
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable % 2312 § 21,694 §
Due fo other funds
Deferred revenues 1,380
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,312 23,074
FUND BALANCES
Reserved 207,998 148,745 483,038
Unyeserved:
Designated - conservation and development
Undesignated - -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 207,998 148,745 483,038
$ 210,310 § 171,819 § 483,038

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - Continued
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

TOTAL
ECONOMIC PUBLIC TAXI CABLE BUSINESS SPECIAL
DEVELOPMENT SAFETY SYSTEM TELEVISION IMPROVEMENT REVENUE
FUND FUND FUND FUND DISTRICT FUNDS

$ 1207313 § 24994 $ -8 120,929 $ 16,073 $ 1,002,321

41,297 9,882 48,525 099,704

517,975 - 811,924

- 2,736 14,832

- - . 26,110

- 109,345 109,345

$ 1,766,585 $ 34876 109,345 § 120,929 §$ 67,334 $ 2,964,236

$ 324 § -3 13,767 § 16,813 & -8 54,910

- - 70,145 180 - 70,325

54,976 26,269 - - 69,781 152,406

55,300 26,269 83.912 16,993 69,781 277,641

480,964 8,607 103,936 . 1,433,288

1,230,321 . - 1,230,321

25,433 (2,447) 22 986

1,711,285 8,607 25433 103,936 (2,447) 2 686,595

$ 1,766,585 § 34876 $ 109,345 § 120,929 § 67,334 $ 2,964,236
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ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Receivables

Taxes
Prepaid expenses
Due from

Other funds

Other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due io
Other funds
Cther goveraments
Deferred ravenues

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Reserved
Unteserved
Designated - capital outlay
Undesignated

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

PARKS & REC TID.#3
INFRASTRUCTURE ~ PUBLIC AIRPORT CAPITAL TOWER
CONSTRUCTION SAFETY OUTLAY PROJECTS HALL
$ 896265 § 598650 § 73432 § - § 143402

778 . - 18779 6,148

i : . 25,000 i
5,850 : . .

$ 902,891 $ 508650 § 73432 § 43779 § 149550

$ 65887 S 1011 § -8 568§ -
. 4914

50,000 : ) :

1083 : . 25,000 134,897

118,920 1071 - 30,482 134,897

3 ] i : 14653

785,971 597,639 73,432 13,207 .

785,971 507,639 73,432 13,297 14,653

$ 902,801 § 508650 § 73432 § 437719 § 149,550
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - Continued
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

TID.#5 TID#7 TID.#8 TOTAL
TED. %2 TiD.#4 TID.#8 MILLCREEX  YELLOWSTONE  SHOPPES CAPITAL
PURDY DOWNTOWN FIGI BUSINESS INDUSTRIAL AT WOOD PUBLIC PROJECTS
BUILDING REDEVELOPMENT  PROJECT PARK PARK RIDGE FACILITIES FUNDS
§ 100,692 $ $ - $ - % 563053 § $ 135075 § 2,511,469
78,977 466,002 - 135,943 - 28,049 108,170 842,844
- - - - . 25,000
- . - 5,850
- 89,800 - " 89,800
$ 179,869 § 466,002 $ - 8 135,943 $ 653,753 § 28,049 § 243245 $ 3,474,963
$ - § - 8 - & - % 11,714 $ 286 § - § 79,466
- 1,916,940 32,398 1,545,973 8,699 - 3,508,924
- . - - - . - 50,000
105,137 620,362 - 180,973 - 37,340 144,000 1,048 742
105,137 2,537,302 32,398 1,726,946 14,714 44,325 144,000 4885132
74,532 . - - 642,039 - 731,224
. . . ; . - 09,245 1,569,584
- (2,071,300} (32,398) {1,591,008) - {16,276) - (3,710,977)
74,532 (2,071,300) (32,398) (1,591,003) 842,039 {16,276) 99,245 (1,410,189}
S 179869 % 466,002 § - 8 135943 § 653,753 § 28,049 $ 243245 § 3,474,963
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

TOTAL

- 63 -

PERMANENT
FUND NONMAJOR
SPECIAL CAPITAL  PERPETUAL  GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUE PROJECTS CARE FUNDS '
"~ REVENUE
Taxes $ 372300 § 1744546 § - % 2,116,846
Intergovernmental revenues 389,624 103,762 493,386
Licenses and permits 190,278 - - 190,278
Public charges for services ' 65,435 1,500 6,844 73,779
Other revenue 96,106 58,748 4178 159,032
_TOTAi_ REVENUES 1,113,743 1,908,556 11,022 3,033,321
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 167,438 167,438
Public safety 18,355 - 18,355
Public works 329,036 1,658 - 330,694
Cuiture, recreation and education 220,088 - 220,088
Conservation and development 174,827 231,355 406,182
Capital outtay 171,054 2,176,767 2,348,721
Interest and fiscal charges . - 28,250 28,250
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,081,688 2,438,030 3,519,728
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 32,045 (529,474) 11,022 (486,407)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
Issuance of long term debt - 89,800 - 89,800
Transfers in ' 171,506 1,978,857 - 2,150,363
Transfers out {350,866) {956,380) (4,179) {1,311,425)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {179,360} 1,112,277 (4,179) 928,738
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (147,315) 582,803 6,843 442,331
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,833,910 (1,992972) 186,867 1,027,805
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 268659 § (1,410,169) § 193,710 § 1,470,136




CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

CONVENTION
ROOM & VISITORS RESIDENTIAL
TAX BUREAU REHABILITATION
FUND FUND FUND
REVENUE
Taxes $ 310,200 $ - $
Intergovernmental revenues ' -
Licenses and permits - -
Public charges for services - - .
Other revenue . 49,486 1,123
TOTAL REVENUES 310,200 49,486 1,123
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government - - .
Public safety
Public warks - -
Culture, recreation.and education 1,958 218,130
Conservation and developrnent -
Capital outlay 78,096 - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 80,054 218,130
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 230,146 (168,644) 1,123
CTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 171,506
Transfers out (182,673)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (182,673) 171,506
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 47,473 2,862 1,123
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 160,525 145,883 481,915
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 207,998 $ 148,745 § 483,038
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCES - Continued
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

TOTAL
ECONOMIC PUBLIC TAXI CABLE BUSINESS SPECIAL
DEVELOPMENT SAFETY SYSTEM TELEVISION  IMPROVEMENT REVENUE
FUND FUND FUND FUND DISTRICT FUNDS
$ 43,500 13,500 § 5100 $ - § 372,300
- 389,624 389,624
. . 190,278 - 190,278
- 1,197 . 64,238 65,435
42,155 1,096 1,240 106 96,106
85,655 16,693 395,064 190,278 64,344 1,113,743
- - 167,438 167,438
18,355 - ' 18,355
329,036 - 320,036
- . - 220,088
108,875 - .- 65,952 174,827
- 67,632 26,206 171,954
108,875 18,355 398,668 193,664 65,052 1,081,698
(23,220) {1,662} (704) (3,386) (1,608) 32,045
- - - 171,506
(168,193) - - (350,866)
(168,193) . - (179,360
(191,413) {1,662) {704) (3,386) {1,608) (147,315)
1,902,698 10,269 26,137 107,322 {839) 2,833,910
$ 1,711,285 § 8,607 $ 25433 § 103,936 $ (2,447) $ 2,686,595
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND GCHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

PARKS & REC TID.#3
INFRASTRUCTURE PUBLIC AIRPORT CAPITAL TOWER
) CONSTRUCTION SAFETY QUTLAY PROJECTS HALL
REVENUE
Taxes $ 486,828 § - § 118500 § 147,000 % 2,257
Intergovernmental revenues - - - 69,333 4)
Public charges for services 1,500 - - -
Other revenue 23,976 - - - 22,569
TOTAL REVENUES 512,304 - 118,500 216,333 24,866
EXPENDITURES
Current
Pubiic Works _ - - -
Conservation and development 120,360 - - - 164
Capitat outlay 1,293,803 263,753 48,000 352,371 -
Interast and fiscal charges 24,309 - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,438,472 263,753 48,000 352,371 164
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES (926,168) (263,753) 70,500 {138,038) 24,702
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term debt - - - -
Transfers in 897,802 606,000 - 143,167 -
Transfers out {29,500) - - - {20,338)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING : .
SOURCES (USES) 868,302 605,000 - 143,167 (20,338)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {57,866) 341,247 70,500 7,129 4,354
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 843,837 256,392 2,932 6,168 10,289
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 785971 § 597,639 § 73432 § 13,297 § 14,653
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - Dontinued
DETAIL OF NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

TID.#5 T.ID.#7 TID.#8 TOTAL
TID. 42 TiD.#4 TID.#6 MILL CREEK YELLOWSTONE SHOPPES CAPITAL
PURDY DOWNTOWN FIGI BUSINESS INDUSTRIAL AT WOOD PUBLIC PROJECTS
BUILDING HEDEVELOPMENT PROJECT PARK PARK RIDGE FACILITIES FUNDS
$ 100305 $ 585,431 $ $ 164418 § -3 37807 $ 102,000 $§ 1,744,546
- 22,304 3,257 13,688 . 2277 (7,137) 103,762
. . - - . . 1,500
- - - 3,600 5,177 , 3,496 58,748
100,305 607,735 3,057 181,706 5,177 40,084 98,289 1,908,556
- - - . - 1,658 1,658
164 - 164 272 101,285 8,046 - 231,355
- 272 - 5,455 77,731 21,802 113,580 0,176,767
) - 3,941 . . 28,250
164 272 164 5797 182,957 32,406 113,580 2,438,030
100,141 . 607,463 3,093 175,979 (177,780) 7,678 (15,291) (509,474)
89,800 - 89,800
- - - - 266,288 66,600 1,978,857
{101,867) (624,007) (3,486) {176,011) - (1,171} {956,380)
{101,867) (624,007) (3,486) (176,011} 356,088 65,420 1112277
(1,726) (16,544) (393) (32) 178,308 7,678 50,138 582,803
76,258 (2,054,756) (32,008) (1,590,971) 463,731 (23,954) 49,107 (1,992,972)
$ 74532 § {2071,300) §  (32,398) $  (1,591,003) $ 642,039 $ 99245 §  (1,410,169)
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SPECIAL
- REVENUE
FUNDS

Room Tax Fund — to account for the collection of room taxes remitted to the City by hotel/motel owners and
expenditures made for upkeep of City’s parks.

Convention and Visitors Bureaun Fund — to account for room taxes received by the Bureau and expenditures made for
promotion of the City.

Residential Rehabilitation Fund — to account for Community Development Block Grants received to provide
residential rehabilitation assistance.

Economic Development Fund — to account for funds utilized for economic development loans and expenditures made
to promote economic development.

Public Safety Fund — to account for eligible grants for Law Enforcement and Fire and Rescue service operations.
Taxi System Fund — to account for grant subsidies received for operation of the local taxi system and expenditures
made for the taxi system.

Cable Television Fund — to account for Cable Television Franchise Fees received and utilized for operation of focal
Cable Access Programming.

Business Improvement Fund — to account for collecting and remitting assessments to the Main Street Program.




~ CITY OF MARSHFIELD
ROOM TAX SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE '
Taxes
Public accomodation taxes $ 273513 § 273513 § 310,200 § 36,687
TOTAL REVENUES ' 273,513 273,513 310,200 36,687
EXPENDITURES
Current _
Cuiture, recreation and education 20,600 20,000 1,958 18,042
Capital outlay
Parks _ 135,000 135,060 78,096 56,904
TOTAL EXPENDITURES _ 155,000 155,000 80,054 74,946
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER {UNDER) EXPENDITURES 118,513 118,513 230,148 111,633
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers out (166,167) (166,167) {182,673) {16,506)
TCTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {166,167) (166,167) {182,673) {16,5086)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - {47,654) {47,654) 47,473 95,127
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 160,525 160,525 160,525
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 112871 § 112871 § 207,998 § 95,127
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

REVENUE
Other revenue

Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture, recreation and education
Capital Qutlay

Culture, recreation and education
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

'FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

-89 -

VARIANGE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 62,100 S 62100 $ 49486 § (12,614)
62,100 62,100 49,486 (12,614)
213,025 213,025 218,130 {5,105)
8,500 8,500 - 8,500
921,525 221,525 218,130 3,395
(159,495)  (150,425)  (168,644) (9,219)
155,000 155,000 171,506 16,506
155,000 155,000 171,506 16,506
(4,425) (4,425) 2,862 7,287
145,883 145,883 145,883

$ 141458 § 141,458 § 148745 $ 7,287




CITY OF MARSHFIELD '
RESIDENTIAL REHABILITATION FUND SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMQUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  (UNFAVORABLE}
REVENUE
Other revenue
Miscellaneous ' ] 4000 $ 4000 § 1,123 § (2,877)
TOTAL REVENUES 4,000 4,000 1,123 (2,877)
EXCESS OF REVENUES QVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 4,000 4,000 1,123 (2,877)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Canservation and development 275 275 - (275)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ' 275 275 - {275}
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 3,725 3,725 1,123 (2,602)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 481,915 481,915 481,915 -
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR : $ 485640 $ 485640 § 483,038 § (2,602)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

REVENUES
Taxes
General properily taxes
Cther revenue
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

Current
Conservation and development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER {UNDER} EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR
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VARIANGE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL  FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  (UNFAVCRABLE)
$ 43500 $ 43500 $ 43500 $ -
60,795 60,795 42,155 (18,640}
104,295 104,295 85,655 (18,640)
109,357 109,357 108,875 482
109,357 109,357 108,875 482
(5,062) (5,062) (23,220) (18,158)
(168,193)  (168,193)  (168,193)
(168,193)  (168,193) _ (168,193) -
(173255)  (173255)  (191,413) (18,158)
1,902,698  1,902698 _ 1,902,698
$ 1720443 § 1,729443 $ 1,711,285 §  (18,158)




CITY OF MARSHFIELD
PUBLIC SAFETY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Taxes
General property 5 13,500 § 13500 § 13,500 § -
Public charges for services - - 1,197 1,197
Other ravenue
interest - 1,900 1,996 96
TOTAL REVENUES -13,500 15,400 16,693 1,283
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety
Law enforcement 18,500 20,400 18,355 2,045
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ' 18,500 20,400 18,355 2,045
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (5,000) (5,000) ('1 ,662) 3,338
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ' 10,269 10,269 10,269
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 5269 § 5269 § 8,607 § 3,338
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REVENUES
Taxes
Generat property
Intergovernmental
State grants
Other revenue
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Capital outlay
Automotive equipment

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

CITY OF MARSHFIELD
TAXI SYSTEM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS __(UNFAVORABLE)

$ 5100 § 5100 § 5100 $ -

348,710 348,710 389,624 40,914

i : 1,240 1,240

353,810 353,810 395,964 42,154

328,810 328,810 329,036 (226)

25,000 25,000 67,632 (42,632)

353,810 353,810 396,668 (42,858)

- (704) (704)

26,137 26,137 26,137 -

$ 26,137 $ 26137 § 25433 § (704)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
CABLE TELEVISION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Licenses and permits
Cable franchise fees $ 176,300 § 176300 $ 190278 § 13,978
TOTAL REVENUES 176,300 176,300 190,278 13,678
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 169,418 169,418 167,438 1,980
Capital outlay
Cable television : 7,300 7,300 26,226 {18,926)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 176,718 176,718 193,664 (16,946)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {418) (418) (3,386) (2,968)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 107,322 107,322 107,322
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 106904 $ 106904 § 103,936 § (2,968)
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~ CITY OF MARSHFIELD
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND GHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES '
Public charges for services
Economic development $ 66,000 $ 66,000 $ 64,238 § {1,762)
Other revenue ‘
interest 150 150 106 {(44)
TOTAL REVENUES 66,150 66,150 64,344 {1,806)
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development 66,290 66,290 65,952 | 338
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 66,290 66,290 65,952 338
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {140) {140) (1,608) (1,468)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR {839) {839) (830)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 5 {(979) $ (979) $ (2,447) § (1,468)
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CAPITAL
PROJECT
FUNDS

Infrastructure Construction — to account for the financing and construction of street and related infrastructure projects
within the City. '

Public Safety Capital Outlay — to account for construction, improvement and remodeling costs for public safety service
buildings.

Airport Qutlay - to account for the costs of capital improvements at the airport.

Parks & Recreation Capital Project Fund - to account for funds designated for specific Parks & Recreation projects.
T.LD. #3 — to account for the City’s share of the costs pertinent to the redevelopment of the “old™ City hall building into
a commercial and residential housing facility.

T.LD. #2 — to account for the City’s share of the cost pertinent to the redevelopment of the Purdy School building into an
independent living senior housing facility.

T.LD. #4 - to account for the City’s share of costs pertinent to revitalization of the downtown area.

T.LD. #6 — to account for the City’s share of infrastructure costs pertinent to the expansion of Figi’s, Inc., a local
distributor of mail order gifts.

T.LD. #5 —to account for the improvements to Mill Creek Business Park.

T.LD.#7 — to account for improvements to Yellowstone Industrial Park.

T.LD.#8 — to account for the City’s share of infrastructure and costs pertinent to redevelopment and revitalization of the
Shoppes at Woodridge and surrounding properties.

Public Facilities — to account for construction, improvement and remodeling costs for public buildings not utilized for
public safety services.




CITY OF MARSHFIELD

INFRASTRUCTURE CONSTRUCTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

REVENUE
Taxes
General property
Intergovernmentaf
" Stats grants
Public charges for services
Highway maintenance and construction fees
Other Revenue
Contributions and donations

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development
Capital outlay
Public works
Debt service
, Interest and fiscal charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Issuance of long-term debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  (UNFAVORABLE)

$ 486828 $ 486828 $ 486828 §

52,000 52,000 - (52,000)
1,500 1,500
- 23,976 23,976
538,828 538,828 512,304 (26,524)
142,040 142,040 120,360 21,680
1,284 476 1,254,975 1,293,803 {38,828)
20,114 20,114 24,309 (4,195)
1,446,630 1,417,129 1,438,472 (21,343)
(907,802) (878,301) (926,168) (47 867)
880,802 880,802 - (880,802)
17,000 17,000 897,802 880,802
{29,500) (29,500) .

897,802 868,302 868,302
(10,000) (9,999) (57,866) (47,867)

843,837 843,837 843,837
$ 833837 $ 833838 § 785971 § {47,867)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
PUBLIC SAFETY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND _
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL EINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay _

Fire protection $ 605000 § 605000 $§ 263,753 § 341,247
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 805,000 605,000 263,753 - 341 247
EXCESS OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (605,000 {605,000) (263,753) 341,247
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Issuance of fong-term debt 605,000 605,000 - {605,000}
Transfers in - - 605,000 605,000

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 605,000 605,000 605,000
NET.CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - - 341,247 341,247

" FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 256,302 256,392 256,392
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR % 9556392 $ 256,392 $ 597,639 § 341,247
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
AIRPORT QUTLAY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES '
Taxes
General property $ 118500 $ 118500 $ 118500 $ -
TOTAL REVENUES 118,500 118,500 118,500 -
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Public works 118,500 118,500 48,000 70,500
TOTAL EXPENDITURES _ 118,500 118,500 48,000 70,500
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES - - 70,500 70,500
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - - 70,500 70,500
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,932 2,932 2,932
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 2,932 § 2932 $ . 73432 3% 70,500
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

PARKS / RECREATION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes _
General property $ 147000 $ 147,000 $ 147,000 $ -
Intergovernmental
State and lecal grants 38,833 99,833 69,333 (30,500)
QOthet revenue 86,000 (86,000)
TOTAL REVENUES 185,833 332,833 216,333 {116,500)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Parks outlay 314,000 484,000 352,371 131,629
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 314,000 484,000 352,371 131,629
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES {128,167) {151,167) (136,038) 15,129
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 128,167 143,167 143,167 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 128,167 143,167 143,167
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - (8,000) 7,129 15,129
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,168 6,168 6,168
8 6,168 §$ {1,832) § -~ 13,297 § 15,129

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

T.1.D. NO. 3 (TOWER HALL) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

REVENUE
Taxes
General property
Intergovernmental
State shared grants
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER} EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 2295 % 2295 $- 2957 § (38)
60 60 40 (20)
24,483 24,483 22,569 (1,914)
26,838 26,838 24,866 {1,972)
164 164 164
164 164 164
26,674 26,674 24,702 (1,972}
(20,338) (20,338) (20,338)
{20,338} (20,338) (20,338}
6,336 6,336 4,364 (1,972)
10,289 10,289 10,289 -
$ 16625 $ 16625 § 14,653 § {1,972)
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. CITY OF MARSHFIELD

T.LD. NO. 2 (PURDY BUILDING) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

REVENUE
Taxes
General property
intergovernmental
Other state shared taxes

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

-B1-

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS  {UNFAVORABLE)
$ 101,891 $ 101,891 $ 100305 § (1,686)
40 40 (40)
102,031 102,031 100,305 (1,726)
164 164 164 -
164 164 164 -
101,867 101,867 100,144 (1,726)
(101,867) (101,867) {101,867)
(101,867) (101,867) (101,867) .
(1,726} - {1,726)
76,258 76,258 76,258
$ 76258 $ 76258 $ 74532 § (1,726)




CITY OF MARSHFIELD
T.1.D. NO. 4 (DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

REVENUE
Taxes
General property
Infergovernmental
Other state shared taxes

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
Conservation and development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS _ (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 595279 § 595279 $ 585431 S (9,848)

29,000 29,000 22,304 (6,696)
624,279 624,279 607,735 (16,544)
272 272 272 .
272 272 272
624,007 624,007 607,463 (16,544)
(624,007)  (624,007) _ (624,007) -
(624,007)  {(624,007)  (624,007)
(16,544) (16,544)
(2,054,756)  (2,054,756)  (2,054,756) -

(16,544)

$ (2,054,756) $ (2,054,756) § (2,071,300) $
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

T.LD. NO. 6 (FIGI PROJECT) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

© REVENUE

Intergovermmental
Other state shared taxes

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development

- TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out

TOTAL OTHER FINANGING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANGE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS ~  (UNFAVORABLE]
$ 365 $ 36850 $ 3257 § (393)

3,650 3,650 3,257 (393)
164 164 164
164 164 164

3,486 3,486 3,093 (393)
(3.486) (3,486) (3,486)
(3,486) (3,486) (3,486)

- (393) (393)

(32,005) (32,005) (32,005) -

$ (32,005 S (32,005) §  (32,398) § (303)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
T.1.D. NO. 5 (MILL CREEK BUSINESS PARK) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes
General property $ 167,183 $§ 167,183 § 164418 § (2,765)
Intergovermmental :
Other state shared revenues 9,000 9,000 13,688 4,688
Other revenue 100 100 3,600 3,500
TOTAL REVENUES 176,283 176,283 181,706 5,423
EXPENDITURES
Current _
" Conservation and development 272 272 272
Capital outtay
Conservation and development - - 5,455 {5,455)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES : 272 272 5727 {5,455)
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 176,011 176,011 175,979 {32)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
Operating transfers out (176,011) {176,011) {176,011) -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) (176,011) (176,011) . (176,011) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - - {32) (32)
FUND BALANGE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (1,590,971}  (1,580,971)  (1,590,971)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ (1,590,971) $ (1,590,971} § (1,591,003) § (32)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD ,
T.LD. NO. 7 (YELLOWSTONE INDUSTRIAL PARK) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

) VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Other revenue $ - 5 - 5 5177 § 5177
TOTAL REVENUES - - 5177 5,177
EXPENDITURES
Current
Conservation and development 272 90,072 101,285 {11,213)
Capital outlay
Conservation and development ' 248,080 248,080 77,731 170,349
Interest and fiscal charges : 17,936 17,936 3,941 13,995
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 266,288 356,088 182,957 173,131
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (266,288) (356,088) (177,780) 178,308
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
Issuance of long-term debt 266,288 356,088 83,800 (266,288)
Operating iransfers in - - 266,288 266,288
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 266,288 356,088 356,088 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - - 178,308 - 178,308
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 463,731 463,731 463,731
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 463731 § 463,731 § 642039 § 178,308
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: CITY OF MARSHFIELD
T.1.D. NO. 8 (SHOPPES AT WOOD RIDGE) CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
Taxes
General property $ 38443 § 38443 $ 37,807 $ (636)
Intergovernmental '
Other state shared taxes ) - - 2,277 2,277
Other revenue - - - -
TOTAL REVENUES 38,443 38,443 40,084 1,641
EXPENDITURES
Current 7
Public works - - 1,658 {1,658)
Conservation and development 164 164 8,946 {8,782)
Capital outlay
Conservation and development 1,733 1,733 21,802 {20,069)
Interest and fiscal charges - - - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,897 1,897 32,406 {30,509)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 36,546 36,546 7,678 (28,868)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ' (23,954) {23,954) (23,954)
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR 3 12,592 § 12592 §  (16,276) § {28,868)
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD
PUBLIC FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE
© Taxes
General property : S 102000 $ 102000 $§ 102,000 $ -
Intergovernmental revenues - - {7,137) {7,137)
Qiher revenue - ' 3,426 3,426
TOTAL REVENUES 102,000 102,000 98,289 {3,711)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay :

General government _ 177,000 178,600 113,580 65,020
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 177,000 178,600 113,580 65,020
EXCESS OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (75,000) (76,600) (15,291) 61,309

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in - 1,600 66,600 65,000
Operating transfers out ‘ - - {1,171) (1,171)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - 1,600 65,429 63,829
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (75,000) {75,000) 50,138 | 125,138
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 49,107 49,107 49,107 -
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR : $  (25893) 5§ (25893) § 99245 § 125,138
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NONMAJOR
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

Emergency Medical Services (Ambulance) — to account for the provisions of EMS Service to the residents of the City
and surrounding contracting communities starting in 2002. All activities necessary fo provide such services are
accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related
debt service.




CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

EMERGENCY
MEDICAL
__SERVICES
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS _
Cash $ 397,319
Accounts receivable _ 134,989
Accounts receivable - other 2,500
Prepaid expenses _ 5,186
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 530,004
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets, at cost
Buildings, systems and equipment _ 757,093
Less accumulated depreciation _ (450,780
Net capital assets 306,313
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 306,313
TOTAL ASSETS ' $ 846,307
LIABILITIES AND-NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES -
Accounts payable $ 16,195
Accrued salaries, wages and compensated absences. ' 16,785
Current portion of long-term debt ' 2,840
Deferred revenues : 13,833
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 49,653
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES :
Long-term obligations ' 84,918
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 84,916
- TOTAL LIABILITIES 134,560
" NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 306,313
Unrestricted 405,425
TOTAL NET ASSETS . ' 711,738

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 846,307
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CITY OF MARSHFIELD

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations
General
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)
Interest Income
Miscellaneous income
Interest and fiscal charges
Other miscellaneous income

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR

-89 -

EMERGENCY
MEDICAL

SERVICES

$ 984,538

828,441

42,565
871,006

113,532

223

(4,903:)

(4,680)
108,852

602,886

$ 711,738




CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers and vendors
Payments to employees

" NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisiion and construction of capital assets
Interest paid
Principal payments of GO refunding bonds
NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) ACTIVITIES

Operating income :

Adjustments to reconcile operating income o
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation charged o depreciation expense

Changes in assets and liabilities
{Increase) decrease in assets

Accounis receivable
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities
Accounts payable
Other accrued expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

-90 -

EMERGENCY
MEDICAL

SERVICES

$ 980,810
(148,943)

(682,592)
149,275

(24,967)
(4,903)
(2,543)

(32,413)

223
223

117,085

280,234

$ _ 397.319
S 113,532
42,565

(16,311)
(1,547)

(5,868)
16,904

$ 149,275




 FIDUCIARY
FUNDS

Agency Funds :

* Payroll Deductions Fund — to account for the collection and payment of payroll deductions from and on behalf of city
employees. :

s  Performance Bonds Fund — to account for the collection-of performance bonds from contractors providing services to
the City.

¢  Property Tax Fund — to account for the collection and payment to the State, County, and school districts of property
taxes billed and collected by the City on their behalf.

¢  Sales Tax Fund — to account for the collection and payment of sales tax,




ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Investments
Taxes receivable
Other receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Other accrued expenses
. Due to other governments

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  §

-CITY OF MARSHFIELD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

AGENCY FUNDS
PAYROLL  PERFORMANCE  PROPERTY SALES

DEDUCTIONS BONDS TAX TAX TOTAL
$ 412529 % 1470 $ 4,652,995 $ 1287 § 5,068,281
18,800 - 13,800
- - 18,750,335 13,750,335
8,832 - - 8,332
$ 421361 § 15270 $ 18,403,330 § 1,287 § 18,841,248
$ - % 16270 § 771§ - 8 16,041
421 361 - - 421 361
- 18,402,559 1287 18,403,846
421,361 15,270 18,403,330 1,287 18,841,248
421,361 § 15,270 $ 18,403,330 $ 1,287 $ 18,841,248

-9 -




Payroli Deductions
ASSETS
Cash
Receivables-Other
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Payroll Deductions

Performance Bonds
ASSETS
Gash and Investments

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Property Tax
ASSETS
Cash
Taxes Receivable
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Governmenis
TOTAL LIABILITIES

State of Wisconsin
ASSETS
Cash

LIABILITIES
Due to Other Governments

TOTAL - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS

- AND LIABILITIES - ALL AGENCY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

ABSETS

_Cash and Investments

Taxes Receivabla
Receivables-Other
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Payroll Deductions
Due to Other Govemments
TOTAL LIABILITIES

BALANCE . BALANCE
111408 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 12/31/08

$ 285,546 2,076,860 $ 1,940,977 . 412,529
3,845 53,633 48,646 8,832

$ 289,491 2,130,493 $ 1,098,623 421 361
$ 289,491 11,786,629 $ 11,654,759 401361
$ 15,270 - $ . 15,270
$ 15,270 . $ - 15,270
3 7,564,143 24,283 410 $ 23,980,998 7,866,555
21,359,963 31,366,601 29 274 707 23 451,857

$ 28,924,106 55,650,011 $ 53,255,705 31,318,412
$ 7,788 15,493 $ 22,510 771
28,916,318 31,551,727 29,150,404 31,317,641

$ 28,924,106 31,567,220 $ 29,172,914 31,318,412
% 785 9,244 $ 8,742 1,287
$ 785 10,811 $ 10,309 1,287
$ 7,855,844 26,369,514 $ 25,939,717 8,295,642
21,359,963 31,366,601 29,274,707 23,451,857

: 3,845 53,633 48,646 8,832
$ 292996850 57,789,748 $ 55,263,070 31,756,330
$ 23,058 15,493 $ 22,510 16,041
289,491 11,786,629 11,654,759 421 361
28,917,103 31,562,538 29,160,713 31,318,928

$ 29,229,652 43,364,660 $ 40,837,982 31,756,330
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h Hawkins, Ash, Baptie

Ws coMPANY, LLP

Certified Public Accountants | Business Advisors

Real Solutions. Real Service,

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

o the Common Coundil
ity of Marshiield, Wisconsin

/o have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activilies, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented

~ gomponent units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Marshfield, Wisconsin, as of and for the year

" ended December 31, 2008, which collactively comprise the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's basic finanicial staterents and have issued our
report thereon dated April 21, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards, issued by the Comptroller -
General of the United States. :

Internai Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Cify of Marshfield, Wisconsin's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
deslgning our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's intsmal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectivensss of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing thair assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or
combination of contro! deficiencies, that adversely affects the City of Marshiield, Wisconsin's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process,
or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remofe
likelihood that a misstatement of the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be

prevented or detected by the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's internal control.

A material weakness is & significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resulis in more than a remote likelinood that
a material misstatement of the financial statemants will not be prevented or detected by the City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's internal control,

Our consideration of internal controf over financial reporting was for the fimited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
would not necessarlly identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compiiance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Marshfield, Wisconsin's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performied tesis of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a dirsct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards. L

This report is intended solely for the infermation and use of ména_gement, City Council, others within the entity, and federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Mo, doby B, ¢ ooy, L7
Marshfield, Wisconsin

April 21, 2009
-93-




STATISTICAL
SECTION

This part of the Cily of Marshfield's comprehensive annuaf financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local
revenue source, the property fax.

| Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to heip the reader assess the affordability of the City's current
levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City's financial aclivities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City's financial report refates to the services the City provides and the activities it
performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules
presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.

Page
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EXPENSES
Governmental activities:
General government
Pubiic safety -
Public works
-Haalth and human services
Conservation and development
Culture, recreation, and education
Interest on long-term debt
-Total governmental activities expenses
Business-type activifies:
- Electric '
T Waler
- Wastewater
EMs ¢
- 'Storm Water -
Communications
Total business-type activilies expenses
Total primary govemment expenses

. PROGRAM REVENUES
Governmenial activities:
Charges for services:
General government
Public saiety
Public works
Health and hurnan services
Coniservation and development
Culture, recreation and education
. "Operating grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues .
Business-type activities: :
* Charges for services:
Efectric ~
“Water
Wastewater
EMS
Storm Water
Communications
Operating grants and contributions
Total business-type activities program revenues

Total primary gevemment program revenues

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Last Six Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Schedule 2

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
$ 2640966 $ 2595656 § 2636409 § 2837950 § 300374  §  3229,005 .

7,123,740 7,522,236 7,173,089 7,049,167 7,139,830 7,366,395
5,896,876 5,947,430 6,352,456 6,562,636 7,140,078 6,690,349
147,601 141,037 142,194 145,191 150,081 451,958
1,892,523 760,017 1,073,530 806,118 3,400,317 3,136,078
3,374,193 836,630 3,226,601 3,153,481 742,530 833,929
1,296,748 1,148,804 1,053,371 1,057,498 945,708 934,124
22,472,647 20,851,81¢ 21,657,630 21,612,050 20 529 985- 22,651,83¢
17,255,263 18,547,915 23,715,632 23,155,498 '28,000,226 - 04,666,782
2,266,670 2,087,770 2,198,361 2,243,908 2,526,510 2,483 984
| 3,169,566 3,199,915 3,405,602 . 3,524,068 3,618,360 3,691,492
680,833 717,343 763,000 774,251 858,601 -'875,909
92,433 560,026 4,888 - - -
- - 21,244 30,818 24,702 28,707
23,464,765 25,112,969 30,108,814 . 99,728,543 35,028,399 31,746,874
45,637 412 48,064,788 51,766,444 51,340,593 57 550,664 54,398,713
686,549 695,416 695,108 752,306 778,777 § 783,088
280,599 211,929 231,776 241,567 315,250 319,526
199,818 172,209 208,158 148,087 249,416 133,232
163,013 110,797 133,911 113,364 137,203 132,075
38,743 49,355 - 50,985 68,206 304,686 317,457
247,905 255,956 272,042 286,341 66,176 58,973
2,964,693 3,080,642 " 2,747 816 3,415,882 5,375,169 3,030,381
4,521,320 - 4,576,304 4,335,704 ~ 5,025,763 7,226,786 4,775,732
"18,071,987 19,708,028 24,333,873 24,326,967 28623244 . 26,470,250
- 2,874,818 2,866,482 2,911,403 2,940,572 3,026,993 3,500,614
4,084,932 4,389,102 4,262,748 4,605,808 4,482 341 4912487
741,667 738,995 812,343 840,421 624,049 928,755
N L824 . . . ) . R
- - 52,053 56,570 56,570 6,386
596,884 1,212,103 790,859 2,687,493 . 729,069 818,916
26,350,288 28,815,534 33,169,279 35,457,831 37,842,266 ° 36,687,380
$ 33491838 $ 37509073 § 40483594 § 45060052 § 41,473,112

R

30,871,608
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NET (EXPENSEYREVENUE
Govemmental activities

" Biisiness-type activifies:

Totat primary govemment net expense

~ GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Govemmental activities:
Taxes
Property taxes
Public accomadation taxes
Other taxes
 State shared revenues
Interest and investment income
Miscellansous
Transfers
Total govemmental activities
Business-type activities:
investment eamings
Property Taxes

Gain {loss} on disposal of capital assets

Transfers
Total business-type activities
Totat primary government

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Govemmental activities
Business-type activifies
Total pimary govemment

Schedule 2 - Continued

. Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

§ (17951327 § (163755%5) § (17.317.836) § (16386,287) § (15295479 § (17.876,107)
2,885,623 3.802,565 3,060,465 5,729,288 2,813,867 - 4,950,506

§  (15065804) & (12572950) § (14257371) & (10,856,989 § (12481612} § (12,825601)
$ 9232574  § 8830158 § 11281224 § 11853933 § 11983483 . § - 12,152,348
. 238,137 266,823 268,552 298,206 - 810,200
1,607,516 530,723 120,524 ) 120,326 .121,963 125,787
5645489 - 5,253,370 5,451,033 5,677,253 5,796,398 5,758,678
452431 383,312 424 609 563,694 654,187 519,600
141,198 205,033 237,137 109,476 170,885 195,002
1,003,634 1,288,753 1,274,792 1,386,151 1,329,331 1,375,603

17,982 842 16,730,486 19,056,142 19,979,385 20,354,453 20,437,219
390,072 467,150 675,541 1,006,583 1,161,950 1,525,548
667,478 - - - -
- 15,998 - - - {24,468)
{1,003,634) {1,288,753) {1,274,792) - (1,386,151) {1,329,331) {1,375,603)
{613,562) {138,127 {599,251} {879,568) {167,381) 125477

§ 17368380 § 16592358 § 18456801 & 19,580.817 § 20,187,072 § 20,562,696
$ 31615 § 354911 § 1,738,306 § 3,303,008 §$ 5058974 § 2,561,112
2,271,861 3,664,438 2461214 5,349,720 2,646,486 5,075,983

$ 2303576 §$ 4019409 § 4199520 § 8742818 § 7705460 § 7,637,085

"Note: The ity began to report accrual information when # implemented GASE Staterment 34 in fiscal year 2003,
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Scheduie 7

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2006 ' 2000

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed ) Assessed Assessed Assessed
Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Taxpayer Type of Business
Marshfigld Clinic Healthcare ' $ 113,028,000 1 9.48%
‘Wal-Mart Development Retail Sales Development 24,089,230 2 2.02% 8,809,300 3 1.16%
Badger. Housing Apartment Gomplexes 14,528,240 3 1.22% 7672950 5 1.01%
Menards Devslopment Home Improvement Retall 11,846,770 4 0.99% 7687400 4 1.01%
V & H Ferd Davelopment Auto / Heavy Truck Sales & Service 11,370,250 5 0.95% '
Ken Staab Partnerships Residential / Cormmercial Construction 10,846,460 g 091% 5,692,220 8. 0.75%-
Shoppes At Woodridge Shopping Mall 9,483,930 7 0.79% 11,544,880 1 1.58%
Festival Foods Development Food Sales / Office Products 9,440,900 8 0.79%
Marshfield Door Systems Wood Doors / Melded Products Manufacturer 9,018,200 9 0.75% 6,886,100 2 1.47%
Wick Building Systems - Medular Homes / Building Materials 7,709,700 10 0.65% 5,589,100 9 0.75%
FIGIS Mail Order Gift Bistributor - - 7,461,820 6 0.98%
Marshfield Health Resourcas Nursing Home I - 5,909,780 7 0.78%
_ Reehl Trucking Trucking . - - 4,525,380 10 0.60%
Hub City Wholesale Food Distributor ) - -
Total $ 221,372,680 18.53% § 73858840 8.73%

Source: City of Marshfield Assessor's Office and Finance Department
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Schedule 8

. CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
tast Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the

Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
for the Percentage in Subsequent ' Percentage
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
1999 % 7922079 % 7,879,061 99.5% $ 4813 § 7,923,874 100.0%
2000 8,684,452 8,658,138 99.7% 31,416 8,689,554 100.1%
2001 8,875,473 8,835,859 99.6% 34,266 . 8,870,125 99.9%
2002 9,166,634 9,108,186 99.4% 33,476 9,141,662 99.7%
- 2003 9,432,927 9,379,880 99.4% . 84,321 9,444 201 100.1%
2004 11,201,144 11,143,098 99.5% 52,966 11,196,064 100.0%
2005 11,766,379 11,746,602 99.8% 38,783 11,785,385 100.2%
2006 11,946,878 11,926,714 99.8% . 19,389 11,946,083 100.0%
2007 12,069,068 12,038,907 99.7% 24,904 12,061,811 99.9%

2008 - 12,366,755 12,325,459 99.7% 38,500 12,363,959 100.0%

Source: City of Marshfield Finance Department.
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Schedule 11
City of Marshfield, Wisconsin
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
December 31, 2008

Estimated
Share of
Net General Estimated Direct and
Obligation Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outsianding Applicable Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes
Wood County _ $ 3,662,698 2579% % 944,756
Marathon County 3,650,000 1.10% 40,150
School District of Marshfield 23,382,103 66.67% 15,588,848
Mid-State Technical College 21,260,000 10.20% 2,168,520
Subtotal, overlapping debt 18,742,274
City direct debt 22 447,262
$ 41,189,536

Total direct and overlapping debt
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Schedule 15

CITY OF MARSHFIELD, WISCONSIN
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
Current Year and Nine Years Age

2008 2000
Employees Rank Employees Rank

Eniployer

Marshfield Clinic 3,823 1 3,074 1
Saint Joseph's Hospital 2,173 2 2,200 2
Roehl Transport, Inc. 2,062 3 1,610 3
Marshfield Door Systems 710 4 1,008 4
De Boer Transportation, Inc. 550 5 :

Wick Building Systems 705 5

Total 9,318 : 8,597

- Source: Marshfield Area Chamber of Commerce and tndustry
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